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James Malcolm
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VICE CHAIR
& TREASURER
Dr. Diane Eynon

AGENDA

SECRETARY
Michael J. Ham
ASSISTANT TREASURER
Faye Storms
ASSISTANT SECERETARY
Orlando Reece
ASSISTANT SECRETARY
Daniel Savona
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Rose Woodworth
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Richard O. Jones
BOARD MEMBERS
Dr. Diane Eynon
Michael J. Ham
Richard O. Jones
James Malcolm
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Faye Storms

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call 3DJH
Mission Statement
Approval of the Minutes – February 17, 2021 Regular Meeting 3DJH
Executive Session (estimated to be 30 minutes)
Financials 3DJH
Chair’s Report
Chief Executive Officer’s Report 3DJH
Committee Reports
x Audit
o Construction Labor Monitoring Reports 3DJH
o 2020 Audited Financial Statements 3DJH
x Finance
x Governance
11. Old Business
x Status of Pending Projects 3DJH5
x Magruder Solar, LLC – Public Hearing Resolution 3DJH6
12. New Business
x RBW Studio – Public Hearing Resolution 3DJH3
x Romeo Kia – Public Hearing Resolution 3DJH4
x PPE Grants for Board Consideration 3DJH5
13. Public Comment (Agenda Items Only)
14. Adjournment

The next meeting of the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency is scheduled for
9:00 a.m., April 21, 2021.
The mission of the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency is to advance the job opportunities,
general prosperity and long-term economic vitality of Ulster County residents by targeting tax incentives,
bonding and other assistance to foster creation and attraction of new business and the retention and
expansion of existing business.
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Item 3.
Roll Call
Present

Absent

James Malcolm, Chair

______

______

Diane Eynon Vice Chair/Treasurer

______

______

Michael J. Ham, Secretary

______

______

Faye Storms, Assistant Treasurer

______

______

Orlando Reece, Assistant Secretary

______

______

Daniel Savona, Assistant Secretary

______

______

Richard O. Jones, Member

______

______
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
MINUTES
February 17, 2021
A regular monthly meeting of the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency was held on Wednesday,
February 17, 2021 at 9:00 A.M. via Zoom
Roll Call:
The following agency members were present:
James Malcolm
Chair
Dr. Diane Eynon
Vice Chair/Treasurer
Michael J. Ham
Secretary
Faye Storms
Assistant Treasurer
Orlando Reece
Assistant Secretary
Daniel Savona
Assistant Secretary
Richard O. Jones
Member/Chief Financial Officer

Arrived at 9:02 A.M.

Left at 10:51 A.M.

The following agency members were absent with notice:
Additional Attendees:
Rose Woodworth
Chief Executive Officer
A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq. Agency Counsel
The meeting was called to order at 9:01 A.M. by Chair James Malcolm.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The members of the Agency participated in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.

ROLL CALL
Roll was called, and it was noted that a quorum was present.
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READING OF THE UCIDA MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency is to advance the job opportunities,
general prosperity and long-term economic vitality of Ulster County residents by targeting tax incentives,
bonding, and other assistance to foster creation and attraction of new business and the retention and
expansion of existing business.
MINUTES
Motion:

Michael J. Ham, seconded by Orlando Reece, moved to approve the minutes of the
January 20, 2021 meeting as presented.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).

Note: Diane Eynon arrived at 9:02 A.M.
Executive Session
Motion:

Richard Jones, seconded by Faye Storms, made a motion to enter Executive Session for
the purpose of reviewing confidential documents with attorney-client privilege.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0)

The Board entered Executive Session at 9:04 A.M.
Motion:

James Malcolm, seconded by Diane Eynon, made a motion to come out of Executive
Session.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).

The Board came out of Executive Session at 9:51 A.M.
No action was taken during Executive Session.
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FINANCIALS
Chief Executive Officer Rose Woodworth presented the January financial report. The annual
administrative fees billed out are $36,000, but not all were necessarily collected. There was also an
application fee that came in during the month of January. The CEO notes that almost all funds of the
funds allocated for PPE grants will be exhausted if the applications on the agenda are approved at this
meeting, but there is still grant money available in the CRC. The checking account and CD balances total
$696,000. The account payable for year-end were for legal fees and administrative fees that are now
paid.
Motion:

Diane Eynon, seconded by Orlando Reece, made a motion to accept the financial report
for January 2021 as presented.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).

CHAIR’S REPORT
James Malcolm presented the Chair’s Report. As part of his report, the Chair reported that it has been
busy year with going over policies and having number of new and existing business approaching the IDA.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
Rose Woodworth presented the Chief Executive Officer’s report. As part of her report, she reported on
the following:
A. Administrative Housekeeping – The CEO confirmed Daniel Savona, seconded by Michael J. Ham,
motioned to approve the housekeeping resolution of 2021 at the previous Board meeting on
January 20, 2021.
B. M&T Bank Transfer – The accounts are set up, but the bank sent checks with the wrong address,
so the CEO is waiting to receive the correct checks before switching banks. The CEO stated a
credit card from M&T Bank has been approved and should be arriving early next week.
C. Open Meetings Law – The Governor passed an Executive Order which includes the extension for
public meetings and hearings to be held remotely for another 30 days, until February 26, 2021.
The next Board meeting is scheduled for after the end date of the order, but the CEO is confident
that this will be extended again, and all meetings will remain via zoom. The CEO will keep
everyone updated on any changes.
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D. Audit Committee Meeting – The Committee plans to meet on Tuesday, February 2, 2021 at 10:30
A.M. The CEO is waiting to find out if the Legislative Chambers are available at that time should
the executive order not be extended.
E. FOIL Request – A FOIL request was received. The CEO is working with Joseph Eriole to complete
the request.
F. Project Close-Out Update – The CEO has been working with Hodgson Russ on various project
close outs.
a. Elna Magnetics – The closing was recorded on January 7, 2021 with the County Clerk and
received on January 27, 2021.
b. Spotted Dog Ventures – The closing was to be recorded by Company Counsel as of January 19,
2021 but has not yet been recorded. The Agency is awaiting final paperwork from Company
Counsel.
c. Kingston Hospitality – The closing was recorded on January 5, 2021 with the County Clerk and
received on January 25, 2021.
d. Tee Bar – The closing was recorded on January 7, 2021 with the Count Clerk and received on
January 27, 2021.
G. Potential Project Applicants – Another potential project has submitted their application for prescreening. The CEO believes there is a business in the Town of Ulster that is still working on filling
out their application to start the pre-screening process.
H. Department of Economic Development Update – The CEO is meeting with the Director of the
Economic Development, Tim Weidemann, and Deputy Director Kate Heidecker. They will meet
every other Friday to keep in touch on various projects, as well as trying to work together on
common goals.
a. It had been brought to the CEO’s attention that there may be money due back from the
Schrade study. Director Weidemann relayed that he felt the study has attracted interest in
the site. Director Weidemann would be happy to discuss this with the Board if there is
interest.
b. Director Weidemann saw to it that the CEO was added to a Healthcare Consortium
working on the shortage of healthcare professionals in Ulster County.
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I. Year-End Reporting Update – The staff is working diligently on gathering year-end reporting
information from all projects so it can be reported to NYS by the end of next month. Letters with
late fees went out to Amthor Welding Services, Golden Hill Acquisitions (the old owners),
Kingston Medical Properties, Viking Industries, and Ulster NH Realty. Letter have also been sent
to those projects that have submitted everything as a reminder of the importance of timely
reporting.
J. EDTHPT Committee – We have been invited to attend the next meeting the County Legislature’s
Economic Development, Tourism, Housing, Planning and Transit Committee by Chairman Brian
Cahill. It has been his hope to stay in touch quarterly.
K. Annual Sit Visits – The CEO has completed all project site visits. A report will be complied along
with the information reported back from projects of PARIS. Completed reports will be provided
to the Audit Committee and then the Governance Committee.
L. Insurance – Insurance policies are up for renewal next month. We are working on getting quotes
to house all our insurance with one local broker to ensure we do not have any lapses in coverage.
M. Post-Closing Affidavits – Post-closing affidavits have been requested from projects that have
completed construction and have finished their sales tax exemption. Brooklyn Bottling has
returned its affidavit. It showed the project went over estimated costs, and they have submitted
payment of $5,595.99. Once their audited financial statements are complete and received, the
affidavit will be reconciled. The Agency is still waiting for responses from Henry Stout (Full Moon
Resort), Saugerties Hospitality, Landmark Preservation, and PODS.
N. Acknowledgements of Fiduciary Duties – The CEO thanked the Agency Board members for
returning their signed Acknowledgements of Fiduciary Duties and Responsibilities for the IDA and
the CRC.
O. Hodgson Russ Invoice – Board approval was needed to pay final 2020 invoice for Hodgson Russ in
the amount of $7,330.51 for work during the second half of 2020.
Motion:

Faye Storms, seconded by Richard Jones, made a motion to pay the invoice after have CFO
Richard Jones and Audit Chair Diane Eynon reviewed the invoice

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).

P. Cost of YTD Administrative Staff for Kingstonian – Per the Audit Committee’s request, the CEO
calculated that the estimated amount of money spent (to-date) on administrative staff for the
Kingstonian project is $19,400, which also includes $1,550 spent on FOILs related to the
Kingstonian.
Q. New Agency Staff – Wendy Quinn has been added as additional staff for the IDA and CRC to help
support the Agency’s activity.
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R. Comptroller Risk Assessment – Ulster County Comptroller March Gallagher has asked the Agency
to be part of her annual risk assessment process again this year. It is not mandatory, but the
Agency will participate in the survey and follow-up interview for transparency.
S. PILOTS and Tax Cap Issues for Schools – Over the past few months, the CEO has been working on
bringing awareness to the issues that school districts face with PILOTs and tax caps. The Executive
Director of the NYS Economic Development Council, Ryan Silva, believes there is a real chance of
getting the bill passed now that the tax cap formula is permanent. The CEO has already been in
contact with the NYS Senators Peter Oberacker and James Skoufis about this issue and plans to
talk with NYS Senator Michelle Hinchey as well. The CEO will be urging the County Legislature to
try to push the issue as well when presenting at the EDTHPT Committee meeting next month.
Motion:

Faye Storms, seconded by James Malcolm, made a motion to accept the CEO’s Report as
presented.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).

Committee Reports
Audit Committee
Audit Committee Chair Dr. Diane Eynon presented the Audit Committee report as follows:
A. Construction Labor Monitoring Report – Clarification of Loewke Brill was completed. When
numbers for the whole month are put together, a monthly compliance average of 90% is
calculated, but the calculation during the actual site visit shows a compliance average of 42%.
Overall, Inness is at 79.72% compliance, just under the 80% requirement. The Committee is
considering increasing site visits from bimonthly to monthly. The Committee will also continue to
work on possible 1099/insurance issues.
B. Background Check Policy – Dr. Eynon presented a resolution to amend the Background Check
Policy. An existing business applying for IDA incentives is currently required to submit three years
of audited financial statements. To alleviate what could prove to be a large financial burden for
small businesses, the amended would allow applicants with $5 million or less of assets, to submit
three years of tax returns. However, the Board will still reserve the discretion to require audited
financial statements if they felt it was necessary. If adopted, changes to the policy would go into
effect immediately. A copy of the resolution is on file.
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Motion:

Diane Eynon, seconded by Richard Jones, moved to approve the resolution amending the
Background Check Policy as presented and recommended by the Audit Committee.

Vote:

The Board voted as follows:
James Malcolm
Faye Storms
Dr. Diane Eynon
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye

The resolution was there upon declared duly adopted.
C. Procurement Policy – Dr. Eynon deferred to Michael J. Ham to present a resolution to amend the
Procurement Policy as recommend by the Audit Committee. The amendment allows the Agency
to have the authority to charge fees and take additional action against vendors if there is a
breach of contract. If adopted, changes to the policy would go into effect immediately. A copy of
the resolution is on file.
Motion:

Diane Eynon, seconded by Faye Storms, made a motion to approve the resolution
amending the Procurement Policy as presented and recommended by the Audit
Committee.

Vote:

The Board voted as follows:
James Malcolm
Faye Storms
Dr. Diane Eynon
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye

The resolution was there upon declared duly adopted.
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D. Enforcement of Agency Projects Policy – Dr. Eynon presented a resolution amending the
Enforcement of Agency Projects Policy as recommended by the Audit Committee. Most of these
amendments are minor but necessary to help to align the policy with the Agency’s actual
practices. An additional change would change lower the employment threshold for noncompliance before the Agency determines the Project is subject to review and possible
enforcement action. If adopted, changes to the policy would go into effect immediately. A copy
of the resolution is on file.
Motion:

Faye Storms, seconded by Richard Jones, made a motion to approve the resolution
amending the Enforcement of Agency Projects Policy as presented and recommended by
the Audit Committee.

Vote:

The Board voted as follows:
James Malcolm
Faye Storms
Dr. Diane Eynon
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona

Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye

The resolution was there upon declared duly adopted.
Finance
No financial committee meeting this month.
Governance
Governance Committee Chair Michael J. Ham presented the Governance Committee report. There has
not been a Governance Committee meeting. However, the Chair intends to schedule one for March and
report back to the Board on the Community Benefits Agreement and Mentoring Program.

Page 10 of 145

OLD BUSINESS
Status of Pending Projects
Board Counsel A. Joseph Scott, Esq. reported on the status of pending projects:
•

Wildberry Lodge, LLC – No change. Project is completing SEQR process. No action can be taken
until the process is completed.

•

Kingstonian Development, LLC – Ready to move forward to closing once the Project finalizes
timetable.

•

Apherea, Inc. – Ready to schedule public hearing once Project Applicant finalizes application.

•

Magruder Solar, LLC – Project applicant has submitted application and is requesting that the
Agency adopt a public hearing resolution.

Motion:

Michael J. Ham, seconded Diane Eynon, made a motion to accept the report regarding the
Status of Pending Projects as presented.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (7-0).
NEW BUSINESS
Magruder Solar, LLC

Eric Millard, CFO of CS Energy, and Matt Tripoli, Director of Project Development of CS Energy, presented
an overview of the Project. CS Energy plans to build a 20 acre (5 megawatt) solar project in the Town of
Shawangunk. The Board expressed concern that the Project would not add any permanent jobs. In
addition, Board inquired as to whether or not CS Energy had spoken to anyone with respect to local or
union laborers being used for the Project. The Board decided it was best for the Project to with its prescreen group again. Michael J. Ham will replace James Malcolm to give him the opportunity to ask
specific labor questions. This will also provide the developers with time to gather the information being
requested to move forward.
Daniel Savona left the meeting at 10:51 A.M.
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PPE Grants for Board Consideration
The Board reviewed the applications for PPE Grants. McGillicuddy’s Tap House and The Stone Pony Deli
have applied. The CEO stated that the funds under the IDA for the grants will be close to being exhausted
after these two grants.
Motion:

James Malcolm, seconded by Diane Eynon, made a motion to approve the grants to the
applicants on the list presented.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (6-0).
PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.
ADJOURNMENT
Motion:

Michael J. Ham, seconded by Diane Eynon, moved to adjourn the meeting.

Vote:

The motion was unanimously adopted (6-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 11:03 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael J. Ham, Secretary
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12:01 PM
03/04/21
Accrual Basis

Ulster County Industrial Development Agency
Statement of Financial Activity
Budget vs. Actual
February & January ‐ February 2021
TOTAL
Feb 21

Jan-Feb 21

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Operating Revenues
4010 · Project Closing Fees

5,595.99

5,595.99

215,000.00

-209,404.01

2.6%

0.00

36,250.00

35,000.00

1,250.00

103.57%

4030 · Application Fees

1,000.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

0.00

100.0%

4070 · Miscellaneous Fees

3,000.00

3,000.00

1,000.00

2,000.00

300.0%

850.00

850.00

12,000.00

-11,150.00

7.08%

10,445.99

47,695.99

265,000.00

-217,304.01

18.0%

10,445.99

47,695.99

265,000.00

-217,304.01

18.0%

4025 · Annual Administrative Fees

4090 · Project Admin Fees (Pass-Thru)
Total 4000 · Operating Revenues
Total Income
Expense
6000 · Professional Fees
6010 · Administrative Staff Fees

23,575.00

25,925.00

144,000.00

-118,075.00

18.0%

6030 · Legal Fees

0.00

0.00

30,000.00

-30,000.00

0.0%

6040 · Auditing Fees

0.00

0.00

10,000.00

-10,000.00

0.0%

6050 · Website & Marketing

0.00

0.00

15,000.00

-15,000.00

0.0%

1,500.00

1,500.00

12,000.00

-10,500.00

12.5%

6055 · Livestream
6060 · Contracts for Other Services

0.00

14.99

34,750.00

-34,735.01

0.04%

25,075.00

27,439.99

245,750.00

-218,310.01

11.17%

850.00

850.00

12,000.00

-11,150.00

7.08%

-1.53

79.22

1,500.00

-1,420.78

5.28%

6215 · CBA Software

0.00

0.00

1,000.00

-1,000.00

0.0%

6220 · Insurance

0.00

0.00

3,500.00

-3,500.00

0.0%

6230 · Dues & Fees

0.00

0.00

1,000.00

-1,000.00

0.0%

6250 · Seminars & Conferences

0.00

150.00

1,000.00

-850.00

15.0%

6260 · Travel/Meals

0.00

0.00

1,500.00

-1,500.00

0.0%

10,551.53

40,271.22

Total 6000 · Professional Fees
6100 · Project Admin Exp (Pass-Thru)
6200 · Other Expenses
6210 · Office Expense & Postage

6290 · PPE Grants Program
6299 · Miscellaneous
Total 6200 · Other Expenses
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

0.00

0.00

500.00

-500.00

0.0%

10,550.00

40,500.44

10,000.00

30,500.44

405.0%

36,475.00

68,790.43

267,750.00

-198,959.57

25.69%

-26,029.01

-21,094.44

-2,750.00

-18,344.44

767.07%

150.82

305.34

2,750.00

-2,444.66

11.1%

150.82

305.34

2,750.00

-2,444.66

11.1%

150.82

305.34

2,750.00

-2,444.66

11.1%

-25,878.19

-20,789.10

0.00

-20,789.10

100.0%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7010 · Interest Income
Total Other Income
Net Other Income
Net Income
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Page 1 of 1

3:47 AM

Ulster County Industrial Development Agency

03/07/21

Statement of Financial Position
As of February 28, 2021

Accrual Basis

Feb 28, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1010 · Cash, Checking (BOGC)
1050 · Cash, Savings (BOGC)
1090 · Rhinebeck Savings CD
Total Checking/Savings

69,876.75
471,401.75
200,741.99
742,020.49

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Receivable

8,700.00

Total Accounts Receivable

8,700.00

Other Current Assets
1350 · Other Current Receivables
1400 · Due from UCCRC

6.09
100.00

Total Other Current Assets

106.09

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2010 · Accounts Payable

750,826.58
750,826.58

3,500.00

Total Accounts Payable

3,500.00

Other Current Liabilities
2200 · Escrow

7,590.45

Total Other Current Liabilities

7,590.45

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

11,090.45
11,090.45

Equity
3000 · Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income

760,525.23
-20,789.10

Total Equity

739,736.13

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

750,826.58
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From: Keith Blair
Sent: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 9:27 AM
To: Ulster County IDA Staff
Cc: Brian MacGregor; Judy Larson
Subject: Ulster County IDA, Broker of Record Change Letters
Hello Lindsay,
It was a pleasure speaking with you yesterday. As discussed, I have attached broker of record change
letters that will allow Marshall and Sterling to be the servicer on the Cyber and General Liability policies
currently held by two separate agents. Doing so would allow us to have the whole insurance picture for
the IDA and exposures within, organizing your insurance so it can work together and we can close any
gaps in coverage that may currently be present. Although we did take the general liability and cyber
policies out to market to see if a better option was available, given the operations of the IDA and the
coverages currently being provided the policies in place are sufficient. The options that we found were
either overkill with the amount of coverage and pricing offered or failed to match the specific needs of
the IDA. Should you have any questions or would like our help in presenting this to the board, please do
not hesitate to ask, we would be happy to do so.
To move forward with moving the policies to Marshall and Sterling, please have Rose Woodworth sign
each of the forms below her printed name and return the forms to me, I will take care of the rest.
Regards,
Keith W Blair, MBA
Commercial Lines Account Manager
Marshall & Sterling Insurance

Notice of Confidentiality – Marshall & Sterling: If you have received this transmittal in error, please
notify us and delete the original without reproducing it in any fashion as it may contain private or
privileged information.
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From: Dan Southard
Sent: Tuesday, March 9, 2021 10:24 AM
To: Rose Woodworth
Subject: Ulster Insurance Services, Inc

Good Morning, Rose
Thank you for the opportunity to review additional insurance coverages for the Ulster County Industrial
Development Agency (UCIDA). We provide insurance services to a variety of city and county agencies
and authorities.
We are always just a phone call or email away and stand ready to provide as-needed or scheduled
periodic reviews of the changing needs of UCIDA. This is a service we offer to our municipal, commercial
and not-for-profit clients to help them plan and adapt their coverages to meet their needs.
In addition, we are backed by the resources and reputation of Ulster Savings Bank and its subsidiaries –
an Ulster County institution since 1851.
I look forward to working with you and the Board to see where Ulster Insurance Services, Inc. can help
the UCIDA chart a course for a successful and secure future.
Thank you.
Daniel B Southard
Ulster Insurance Services, Inc
180 Schwenk Drive
P.O.Box 3953
Kingston, NY 12402
845-338-6000 ext: 3953
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February 2021 Monthly UCIDA Report

March 1st, 2021
Inness New York, LLC – A total monthly head count of 412 workers were
reported
A. Of the 412 workers 375 were compliant and no exemptions
B. Of the 412 workers 37 were non compliant
a. Total monthly compliance average was 91%
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ULSTER COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D

ra
ft

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of
Ulster County Industrial Development Agency
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (a
component unit of Ulster County, New York), (the “Agency”) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Ulster County Industrial
Development Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

ra
ft

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

D

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in financial
position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
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responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenues and
Expenditures – Budget and Actual, Schedule of Conduit Debt Obligations, Schedule of Projects and Exemptions and
the Schedule of PILOTS are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.
The Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget and Actual, Schedule of Conduit Debt Obligations, Schedule of
Projects and Exemptions and the Schedule of PILOTS are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget and Actual, Schedule of
Conduit Debt Obligations, Schedule of Projects and Exemptions and the Schedule of PILOTS are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The Schedule of Full Time Equivalent Jobs has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

D

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March __, 2021 on our
consideration of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Kingston, New York
March __, 2021
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
Introduction
Our discussion and analysis of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency's (the Agency) financial
performance provides an overview of the Agency's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the Agency's financial statements that follow this discussion
and analysis. Ulster County Industrial Development Agency is a New York State public authority and
industrial development agency operating in the County of Ulster, New York. This summary discussion and
analysis includes only the financial and general business of the Agency.
Financial Highlights
The Agency's net position decreased by $142,510 (or 15.8%) as a result of operations in 2020.
In 2020, revenues decreased $112,055 compared to 2019, or (34)%.
In 2019, revenues decreased $192,967 compared to 2018, or (37)%.

Agency Highlights

ra
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In 2020, expenses increased $186,499 compared to 2019, or 105%.
In 2019, expenses increased $5,694 compared to 2018, or 3%.

For the year ended December 31, 2020

D

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency authorized incentives for two (2) new projects and
one (1) assumption through sale of building with the retention of the existing employees from the old
project by the new project operator with a requirement for the same job threshold. The new development
projects benefited applicants in the distillery and event venue, bottling, and hotel/resort/golf course
sectors. Each project is expected to retain and create new job opportunities and contribute to Ulster
County’s economic diversity and vitality. The Agency collected $239,530 in administrative fees. The
benefit from the new projects to the Mid-Hudson Economic Development Region include the addition of
20 additional full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees added to an existing staff roster of 135 FTE
employees at a local bottling plant and warehouse facility and the addition of 10.25 new FTE employees
added to an existing staff roster of 1.75 FTE employees in the resort/venue sectors in the Ulster County
region.
Using This Annual Report

This Annual Report consists primarily of the Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes of Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows, which provide information
about the activities of the Agency only.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The statements report the
Agency's net position and changes in net position. One way to measure the Agency's financial position is
to look at the net position - the difference between assets and liabilities.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
Condensed Comparative Financial Statements and Analysis
The Agency's net position at the end of the 2020 was $760,525, a decrease of $142,510 from $903,035
at December 31, 2019. The Agency's net position at the end of the 2019 was $903,035, an increase of
$156,044 from $746,991 at December 31, 2018.
Our analysis below focuses on net position (Table 1) and the changes in net position (Table 2).
Table 1 – Net Assets

2020

2019

2018

Current Assets

$ 776,496

$ 940,787

$ 759,626

Current Liabilities

$

$

$

Net Position - Unrestricted

$ 760,525

37,752

$ 903,035

12,635

$ 746,991

ra
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Current Assets:

15,971

Cash and cash equivalents totals at the end of 2020 were $497,066 versus $679,202 at the end of 2019.
The decrease is a direct result of issuance of personal protective equipment grants in 2020. Cash and
cash equivalents totals at the end of 2019 were $679,202 versus $737,612 at the end of 2018. The
decrease in cash and cash equivalents was a direct result of allocating money to time deposits in 2019.
The Agency purchased certificates of deposit to obtain a better interest rate return given the increase in
assets over the past few years.

D

Current Liabilities:

Outstanding payables were for services performed in the current fiscal year and paid for in the
subsequent fiscal year.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency began collecting an additional fee held in escrow
for labor audits. As those labor audit fees are incurred, the IDA recognizes revenue and expense. Any
remaining escrow money not spent at the end of the project is returned to the project owner.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
Condensed Comparative Financial Statements and Analysis (Continued)
Table 2 – Changes in Net Assets

2020
Revenues:
Project fees
Project admin fees
Application fees
Interest income
Other income
Total revenues

$

2018

187,250
14,268
2,000
4,970
13,050
221,538

$ 239,530
4,848
1,000
8,215
80,000
333,593

$ 519,249
3,500
3,811
526,560

364,048
364,048

177,549
177,549

171,855
171,855

ra
ft

Expenses:
Operating expenses
Total expenses

2019

Changes in Net Position

$

(142,510)

$ 156,044

$ 354,705

D

The Agency's revenues in 2020 were $221,538 versus $333,593 in 2019. Other income in 2019 includes
recovery of legal fees from prior costs incurred in litigation from an applicant that was denied project
benefits. Expenses in 2020 were $364,048 versus $177,549 in 2019. The revenue decrease in 2020 over
2019 was caused by a significant decrease in Project closing fees. The expenses increased in 2020
predominantly due to Administrative staff fees and grant expense from 2020 over 2019. The Agency's
revenues in 2019 were $333,593 versus $526,560 in 2018. Expenses in 2019 were $177,549 versus
$171,855 in 2018. The revenue decreases in 2019 over 2018 was caused by significant decrease in
Project closing fees. The expenses increased in 2019 predominantly due to an increase in Administrative
staff fees from 2019 over 2018.
Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt

There were no capital asset additions in 2020 or 2019 and the Agency did not take on any long-term debt
in 2020 or 2019.
Budget
In October 2019, the Agency adopted and amended the 2020 budget projecting revenues to be $222,450
and expenses to be $431,200. Actual 2020 revenues totaled $221,538 and actual 2020 expenses totaled
$364,048. Much of the decrease in actual expenses over budget was the result of less than expected
number of grants closing in 2020.
Contacting UCIDA Financial Administrator
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the Agency's finances and to show the Agency's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Ulster County Industrial Development Agency, P.O. Box 4265, Kingston, New York 12402-4265.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2020 and 2019
2020

2019

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Certificates of deposit

497,066

$

679,202

200,524

253,175

78,806

3,609

Due from UCCRC

100

4,576

Prepaid expenses

-

225

Accounts receivable

Total assets

$

776,496

$

940,787

$

11,531
4,440

$

23,077
14,675

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ra
ft

Accounts payable
Escrow payable
Total liabilities

15,971

37,752

760,525

903,035

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

$

776,496

$

940,787

D

Total liabilities and net position

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
2020
OPERATING REVENUES
Administrative fees
Application fees
Miscellaneous and late fees
Project fees
Project pass-thru fees

$

2019

37,250
2,000
13,050
150,000
14,268

$

1,000
239,530
4,848

216,568

80,000
325,378

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Contracts for services
Grant Expense
Insurance
Membership dues
Miscellaneous
Project pass-thru expenses
Professional
Website
Total operating expenses

134,623
2,326
159,043
3,063
850
655
14,168
47,821
1,499
364,048

54,176
4,770
2,298
858
337
5,513
103,766
5,831
177,549

(147,480)

147,829

ra
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Recovery of legal fees
Total operating revenues

Operating income

D

OTHER REVENUES
Interest income
Total other revenues

4,970
4,970

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year
NET POSITION, End of year

$

8,215
8,215

(142,510)

156,044

903,035

746,991

760,525

$

903,035

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
2020

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Project fees

$

93,547

Application fees
Administrative fees
Recovery of legal fees
Other fees
Payments for vendors

$

272,882

2,000

1,000

37,250

-

-

80,000

13,050

-

(59,157)

(109,932)

Payments for grants given

(159,043)

Payments for administrative expenses

(167,404)

(57,400)

(239,757)

186,550

Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities

-

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

4,970
(200,524)

ra
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Purchase of investments

8,215

Redemption of investments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year

(253,175)

253,175

-

57,621

(244,960)

(182,136)

(58,410)

679,202

737,612

$

497,066

$

679,202

$

(147,480)

$

147,829

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH

D

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in due from UCCRC
Decrease in due to Ulster County
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses

(75,197)
4,476
225

18,405
(4,576)
(12,500)
(225)

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable

(11,546)

22,942

(Decrease) increase in escrow payable
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities

$

(10,235)
(239,757)

$

See notes to financial statements.
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14,675
186,550

ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 1 — NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
The Ulster County Industrial Development Agency, a component unit of Ulster County, New York, (the
“Agency”), a public benefit corporation, was established by New York State legislation and commenced
operations in 1978.
The Agency’s present function is to advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and long-term
economic vitality of Ulster County residents by targeting tax incentives, bonding and other assistance to
foster creation and attraction of new business and the retention and expansion of existing business.
The Agency also has the power to acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease, sell, improve, maintain, equip, or
furnish certain properties and facilities.
The members of the Agency are appointed by the County of Ulster’s legislature. Agency members have
complete responsibility for management of the Agency and accountability for fiscal matters.
The Agency is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes.
Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT):

D
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The Agency enters into and administers PILOT agreements for various companies in the surrounding
area. The PILOT agreements are entered into between the Agency and a third-party business. Title to
Property owned by the third-party business is transferred to the Agency for a period of time. During the
term of the agreement (when the Agency holds the title to the property), the third-party business pays the
Agency an annual PILOT amount based on a calculation derived by a formula in the agreement. The
calculation is performed by the Agency and sent to the municipalities. The PILOTS allow the participants
to make payments at a lower rate than if the company paid the property’s assessed value at the current
tax rates for county, town and school taxes. Certain requirements are to be met by the company to be
able to maintain their PILOT. These requirements, stated in the PILOT agreement, can be comprised of
reaching and maintaining certain employment goals and paying their PILOT in a timely fashion. This
promotes employment and economic development. The Agency will in turn pay the respective tax
authorities. At the completion of the PILOT program, title to the property is transferred back to the thirdparty business owner and the property goes back on the respective tax rolls.
The Agency generates fees from PILOT agreements called “Administrative and Application Fees.” The
Agency also administers bonds for several projects and receives an administrative fee upon issuance of
the bond.
NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the Agency applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements including GASB Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements”. The
government-wide financial statements include the Agency’s only fund (single enterprise fund).
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
GASB Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position”, and GASB Statement No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities”, defined and classified deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. A
deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets that applies to future period(s), and as such,
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. A deferred inflow
of resources is an acquisition of net assets that applies to future period(s), and as such, will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Statement 63 changed how governments organize their statements of financial position (such as the
current government-wide statement of net assets and the governmental funds balance sheet).

Budgetary Data

ra
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As a result of Statement 63, financial statements will include deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources (“deferrals”), in addition to assets and liabilities, and will report net position instead of
net assets.

The budget policies are as follows:

By October of each year, the Chief Financial Officer submits a tentative budget to the Finance Committee
and, the Finance Committee recommends the budget to the Board of Directors for final approval for the
next fiscal year which begins the following January 1. The tentative budget includes proposed
expenditures and the proposed means of financing.
Use of Estimates

D

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Agency considers cash in operating bank accounts, demand
deposits, cash on hand, and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or
less as cash and cash equivalents.
Revenue Recognition
The Agency recognizes revenue annually in the period services are performed. Revenue is recognized
for administrative services performed related to bond issuances in the period the services are performed
generally when the related bond issuances are finalized.
PILOT receipts and PILOT payments related to the property not owned by the Agency to the respective
taxing authorities are accounted for as pass through transactions and are not included in the revenues or
expenses of the Agency. The Agency has the responsibility for administering the program, but the
jurisdictions ultimately bear the risk of loss if PILOT payments are not paid by the respective companies.
Participants in the PILOT program are instructed to pay the taxing authorities directly.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net position
Net position is an element of proprietary fund financial statements and is measured by the difference
between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflow of resources.
Project pass-thru fees and expenses
The Agency incurs costs as part of its project oversight due diligence. Project owners provide the Agency
with advanced funds that remain in escrow. The funds are recognized as project pass-thru fees and
expenses on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as the costs are
incurred.
Risks and Uncertainties
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In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) was first reported in Wuhan,
China. Less than four months later, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID19 a pandemic.
The extent of COVID-19’s effect on the Organization’s operational and financial performance will depend
on future developments, including the duration, spread and intensity of the pandemic, all of which are
uncertain and difficult considering the rapidly evolving landscape. As a result, it is not currently possible to
ascertain the overall impact of COVID-19 on the Organization’s finances. However, if the pandemic
continues to evolve into a severe worldwide health crisis, the disease could have a material adverse
effect on the Organization’s activities, results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.
Subsequent Events

D

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March __, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Agency’s investment policies are governed by New York State statutes. The Agency’s funds must be
deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust companies located within New York State. The
Agency is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit.
Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not covered by
federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United
States and its agencies and obligations of the New York State and its municipalities and school districts.
The certificates of deposit shown above are covered by pledged collateral.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 3 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (Continued)
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, cash and cash equivalents were covered by federal depository
insurance up to $250,000. The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents as included in the
statements of net position at December 31, 2020 and 2019:
2019

2020

Checking and Savings Accounts

Book Balance

Bank Balance

Book Balance

Bank Balance

$

$

$

$

Certificates of deposit:
Total

497,066
200,524

$

697,590

FDIC Coverage

521,879
200,635

$

722,514

$

450,635

Pledged Collateral

679,202
253,175

$

932,377

253,175
$

977,640

$

250,000

596,564
$

920,748

(324,685)

$
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In Excess

2020

Greene County Bank CD (1.85% due 05/10/2020)

$

Greene County Bank CD (2% due 08/10/2020)
Rhinebeck Bank CD (0.65% due 07/29/2021)
Total

724,465

$

-

(193,108)
2019

$

126,525

-

126,650

200,524

-

200,524

$

253,175
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NOTE 4 — CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the Ulster County Industrial Development Agency issues Industrial Revenue Bonds to
provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commercial facilities deemed to be in the interest of the public. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served
by the bond issuance. Neither the County of Ulster Industrial Development Agency, nor the State, nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of December 31, 2020
and 2019, outstanding bonds totaled $9,174,169 and $9,174,169, respectively.
NOTE 5 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the amount due from Ulster County Capital Resource Corporation
(UCCRC) was $100 and $4,576, respectively. The amount due to the Agency was related to costs to
create UCCRC’s website along with the Agency’s annual site visits and administration. For the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Ulster County Capital Resource Corporation paid $8,450 and
$3,163, respectively, in total administration fees, postage, and other costs to the Agency.
Effective January 1, 2019, the Agency is no longer administered by the County of Ulster.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 6 — LEGAL SETTLEMENT
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency settled a lawsuit for the denial of benefits to a
project applicant. The Agency expensed $33,012 and $61,466 in legal fees for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and recovered $80,000 in 2019.
NOTE 7 — GRANTS

D
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In response to COVID-19, the Agency authorized a grant program during the year ended December 31,
2020 to reimburse the cost of personal protective equipment to Ulster County businesses and charities.
The agency authorized $200,000. $141,904 was issued for direct grants, and $17,139 was spent to
administer the program during the year ended December 31, 2020. At December 31, 2020, the grant
program had $40,957 of unspent funds which were spent in 2021.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of
Ulster County Industrial Development Agency
A Component Unit of Ulster County, New York
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Ulster County
Industrial Development Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March __, 2021.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

ra
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In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Ulster County Industrial Development
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s
internal control.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ulster County Industrial Development Agency’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

D
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Kingston, New York
March __, 2021

Page 14

Page 35 of 145

ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES – BUDGET TO ACTUAL
Year ended December 31, 2020
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Actual

Revenues:
Administrative fees

$

Application fees

-

$

37,250

$

37,250

$

-

2,000

3,000

2,000

(1,000)

-

14,550

13,050

(1,500)

150,000

150,000

150,000

-

5,000

12,500

14,268

1,768

Investment earnings

10,000

5,150

4,970

(180)

Total revenues

167,000

222,450

221,538

(912)

Miscellaneous and late fees
Project fees

Expenditures:
Administrative
Contracts for services
Grants
Insurance
Membership dues
Miscellaneous

ra
ft

Project pass-thru fees

Project pass-thru expenses
Website

D

Professional

Total expenditures

97,000

147,000

134,623

12,377

5,500

2,480

2,326

154

-

200,000

159,043

40,957

2,500

3,200

3,063

137

1,000

750

850

5,000

14,170

655

5,000

12,500

14,168

(1,668)

36,000

49,100

47,821

1,279

15,000

2,000

1,499

501

167,000

431,200

364,048

67,152

(100)
13,515

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS
Year ended December 31, 2020

Outstanding
Beginning of
Fiscal Year
$

800,270
1,100,000
6,244,899
390,000
639,000
10,449,120

$

Paid During
Fiscal Year
-

$

68,887
505,000
420,064
120,000
161,000
1,274,951

ra
f

Amthor
Benedictine
Partition Street
Selux
Viking Industries

Issued During
Fiscal Year

$

$

$

$

731,383
595,000
5,824,835
270,000
478,000
7,899,218

2029
2021
2022
2024
2026

D

$

Outstanding End
of Fiscal Year

t

Bonds Listing

Final
Maturity
Date

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS AND EXEMPTIONS
Year ended December 31, 2020

Project Code

Project Owner

Real
Property Tax
Exemptions
County

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
Local

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
School

$

$

$

5101-07-01

346 Washington Avenue
325 Albany Avenue
Kingston, NY 12401

5101-16-01

2007 Route 9W, LLC
10 Lumen Lane
Highland, NY 12528

5101-11-02

Central Hudson
Tomson Rd & NYS Rt 212
Saugerties, NY 12477

36,880

54,486

5101-15-01

Darienlake Kingston, LLC
8250 Park Road
Batavia, NY 14020

40,925

5101-13-02

Golden Hill Acquistion, LLC
99 Golden Hill Drive
Kingston, NY 12401

5101-98-02

Hudson River Valley LLC
24 Lohmaier Lane
Lake Katrine, NY 12449

-

5,415

25,918

-

$

$

-

-

-

35,867

174,396

-

-

265,762

68,325

303,378

-

-

412,628

41,147

154,782

299,034

-

-

494,963

121,890

203,497

903,979

-

-

1,229,366

8,756

12,936

41,405

-

-

63,097

D

Jimlee Realty
203 Malden Turnpike
5101-09-001 Saugerties, NY 12477

$

Total
Exemptions

-

ra
f

4,534

-

t

-

Sales Tax

Mortgage
Recording

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS AND EXEMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2020

Project Owner

5101-06-03

Kingston Hospitality
1307 Ulster Avenue
Kingston, NY 12401

5101-03-02

Kingston Medical Properties
111 Marys Ave
Kingston, NY 12401

5101-98-03

Lasalle New Paltz
Medical Office
New Paltz, NY 12561

5101-13-01

MHMG-KM Kingston, LLC
1561 Ulster Avenue
Lake Katrine, NY 12449

5101-11-01

MHVFCU - Port Ewen
185 Broadway
Port Ewen, NY 12466

5101-02-02

Mid-Hudson Valley FCU Kingston
1099 Morton Avenue
Kingston, NY 12401

5101-10-01

PSH Development
2976 Route 9W
Saugerties, NY 12477

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
Local

-

-

Sales Tax

-

36,848

78,261

ra
f

9,796

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
School

t

Project Code

Real
Property Tax
Exemptions
County

Mortgage
Recording

Total
Exemptions

-

-

-

-

-

124,905

56,086

110,202

-

-

185,953

182,183

304,157

1,351,134

-

-

1,837,474

3,867

28,852

-

-

37,107

-

-

-

-

D

19,665

4,388

-

6,150

-

9,086

-

29,081

-

44,317

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS AND EXEMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2020

Project Owner

Partition Street
Partition Street and Docks
5101-10-002 Saugerties, NY 12477
Rocking Horse Ranch
600 Route 44/55
5101-09-002 Plattekill, NY 12568

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
Local

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
School

17,878

42,558

84,538

2,279

14,710

ra
f

2,492

Sales Tax

t

Project Code

Real
Property Tax
Exemptions
County

5101-17-03

Saugerties NY Hospitality LLC
2778 Route 32
Saugerties, NY 12477

5101-06-02

Spotted Dog Ventures
5340 Route 28
Mount Tremper, NY 12457

5101-12-02

Stavo Industries, Inc.
132 Flatbush Avenue
Kingston, NY 12401

8,417

31,694

5101-17-02

UPAC, LLC
601 Broadway
Kingston, NY 12401

14,130

5101-12-01

Wolf-tec, Inc.
132 Flatbush Avenue
Kingston, NY 12401

13,674

1,879

D

-

2,777

-

83,936

-

Mortgage
Recording

Total
Exemptions

-

-

144,974

-

-

19,481

-

208,592

120,000

-

-

-

61,222

-

-

101,333

53,153

102,689

-

-

169,972

51,494

99,467

-

-

164,635

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS AND EXEMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2020

Project Code

Real
Property Tax
Exemptions
County

Project Owner

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
Local

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
School

Sales Tax

12,402

30,413

12,601

5101-18-01

Henry Stout and Creative
Environments, LLC
1 Valley View Road
Big Indian, NY 12410

5101-18-03

Hudson Valley Kingston
Development, LLC and Sojourn
Hotel, LLC
161 Chrystie Street
New York, NY 10002

-

-

5101-18-04

Landmark Preservation, LP
295 Broadway
Kingston, NY 12402

-

-

-

40,000

5101-18-02

Marlboro Distr. RTE 9 LLC
1100 NYS Route 9W
Marlboro, NY 12542

-

-

-

122,923

5101-17-04

The Greenhouses Hotel, LLC
2187 Bruynswick Road
Wallkill, NY 12589

491

430

51,322

5101-07-02

Woodland Ponds
60 Park Lane, Suite 5
Highland, NY 12528

147,225

419,896

825,043

-

Total
Exemptions

64,078

D

ra
f

t

8,662

Mortgage
Recording

82,054

50,268

28,021

40,000

-

-

160,343

-

-

122,923

-

52,243

1,392,164

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS AND EXEMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2020

Project Code

Real
Property Tax
Exemptions
County

Project Owner

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
Local

Real Property
Tax
Exemptions
School

Sales Tax

Mortgage
Recording

Total
Exemptions

Viking Industries
89 South Ohioville Road
5101-98-07

New Paltz, NY 12561

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5105-09-003 Gardiner, NY 12525

5105-06-04

Kingston, NY 12401
Inness NY LLC
10 Bank Street

-

-

ra
f

Benedictine Hospital
105 Mary's Avenue

-

t

Amthor
1041 Route 52

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,170

99,015

116,185

Accord, NY 12404
Star Estate Development Group
LLC
1835 Broadway

-

5101-19-01

West Park, NY 12493

-

-

-

3,368

10,088

13,456

5101-19-03

Ham III Realty, LLC
PO Box 808
Milton, NY 12547

-

-

-

9,420

-

9,420

D

5101-19-02

$

691,162

$

1,526,168

$ 4,781,034

$ 375,750

$ 137,124

$7,511,238

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF PILOTS
Year ended December 31, 2020
Project Name

Project Code

2007 Route 9W, LLC
346 Washington Avenue
Amthor
Benedictine Hospital
Central Hudson
Darien Lake Kingston, LLC
Gardiner Library
Golden Hill Acquisition, LLC
Ham III Realty, LLC
Henry Stout and Creative Enviroments, LLC
Hudson River Valley LLC
Hudson Valley Kingston Development, LLC
and Sojourm Hotel, LLC.
Inness NY LLC
Jimlee Realty
Kingston Hospitality
Kingston Medical Properties/ LaSalle
Benedictine
LaSalle New Paltz
Landmark Preservation, L.P.
MHMG-KM Kingston, LLC
MHVFCU- Port Ewen
Marlboro Distr. RTE 9 LLC.
Mid-Hudson Valley FCU - Kingston
PSH Development
Partition Street
Rocking Horse Ranch
Saugerties NY Hospitality, LLC
Selux Corporation
Spotted Dog Ventures
Star Estate Development Group LLC
Stavo Industries, Inc.
The Greenhouses Hotel, LLC.
UPAC, LLC
Viking Industries
Wolf-tec, Inc.
Woodland Ponds

5101-16-01
5101-07-01
5101-09-003
5101-06-04
5101-11-02
5101-15-01
5101-07-03
5101-13-02
5101-19-03
5101-18-01
5101-98-02

County
Local PILOT
PILOT
$
846 $
1,010
45,238
66,833
3,168
5,290
12,480
46,951
5,186
7,426
92,421
154,299

School
Total
PILOT
PILOTS
$
4,835 $ 6,691.00
216,205
328,276
93,460
101,918
95,217
154,648
15,017
27,629
673,963
920,683

5,102
-

7,537
-

55,415
24,124
-

55,415
36,763
-

5101-03-02
5101-98-03
5101-18-04
5101-13-01
5101-11-01
5101-18-02
5101-02-02
5101-10-01
5101-10-002
5101-09-002
5101-17-03
5101-01-04
5101-06-02
5101-19-01
5101-12-02
5101-17-04
5101-17-02
5101-98-07
5101-12-01
5101-07-02
Total

4,011
19,364
2,676
3,769
10,069
1,246
1,879
5,439
491
6,416
75,741
295,543

15,089
11,369
32,328
2,358
5,569
23,969
1,139
2,777
20,460
430
24,133
231,056
660,022

32,048
141,141
16,967
17,824
47,611
7,355
8,955
41,501
3,241
48,951
408,203
$ 1,952,034

51,148
11,369
192,833
22,001
27,162
81,649
9,740
13,612
67,400
4,162
79,500
715,000
$ 2,907,599

D

ra
ft

5101-18-03
5101-19-02
5101-09-001
5101-06-03

$

$

See notes to financial statements.
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ULSTER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(a component unit of Ulster County, New York)
SCHEDULE OF FULL TIME EQUIVALENT JOBS
Year ended December 31, 2020

Original
Estimate of
Jobs to be
Created

Original
Estimate
of Jobs to # of Current
FTE
be
Retained Employees
21
2
29
726
6
0
2
279
135

27
0
0
532
0
20
8
517
135

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
131

5101-18-01
5101-98-02

47
0

6
412

47
0

49
566

0
0

5101-18-03
5101-19-02
5101-09-001
5101-06-03
5101-03-02
5101-98-03
5101-18-04
5101-13-01
5101-11-01
5101-18-02

0
2
38
0
51
28
0
88
0
11

50
10
31
20
0
46
8
54
7
13

0
2
38
0
51
28
0
88
0
11

23
2
68
29
65
165
13
134
8
9

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5101-02-02
5101-10-01
5101-10-002
5101-09-002
5101-17-03
5101-01-04
5101-06-02

0
0
0
225
0
32
123

7
11
40
24
11
0
40

0
0
0
225
0
32
123

0
13
56
209
21
186
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5101-19-01
5101-12-02
5101-17-04
5101-17-02
5101-98-07
5101-12-01
5101-07-02

2
51
0
13.3
62
74
0

26
8
16.6
3.1
10
31
126

2
51
0
13.3
62
74
0

0
66
8
24
74
102
199

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

D

Mid-Hudson Valley FCU - Kingston
PSH Development
Partition Street
Rocking Horse Ranch
Saugerties NY Hospitality, LLC
Selux Corporation
Spotted Dog Ventures
Star Estate Development Group
LLC
Stavo Industries, Inc.
The Greenhouses Hotel, LLC
UPAC, LLC
Viking Industries
Wolf-tec, Inc.
Woodland Ponds

# of FTE
Construction
Jobs Created
During Fiscal
Year

5
9
10
0
0
27
3
11
20

ra
ft

Project Name
2007 Route 9W, LLC
346 Washington Avenue
Amthor
Benedictine Hospital
Central Hudson
Darien Lake Kingston, LLC
Gardiner Library
Golden Hill Acquisition, LLC
Ham III Realty, LLC
Henry Stout and Creative
Environments, LLC
Hudson River Valley LLC
Hudson Valley Kingston
Development,LLC and Sojourn
Hotel, LLC
Inness NY LLC
Jimlee Realty
Kingston Hospitality
Kingston Medical Properties
LaSalle New Paltz
Landmark Preservation, L.P.
MHMG-KM Kingston, LLC
MHVFCU - Port Ewen
Marlboro Distr. RTE 9 LLC.

# of FTE
Employees at
Project
Location
Before IDA
Status
Project Code
5101-16-01
21
5101-07-01
2
5101-09-003
29
5101-06-04
726
5101-11-02
6
5101-15-01
0
5101-07-03
2
5101-13-02
279
5101-19-03
135

See notes to financial statements.
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Pending Transaction List
Deal Name

Agency Action

Status

1.

Wildberry Lodge LLC

Public hearing resolution – 5.9.2018

Project applicant is completing SEQR process.
UCIDA cannot take any action until SEQR
process is complete.

2.

Kingstonian Project

Agency adopted final resolutions – 1.20.21

Ready to move forward to closing once the
project applicant finalizes timetable.

3.

Apherea Inc.

Agency adopted PH resolution – 1.20.21

Ready to schedule PH once project applicant
finalizes Application.

4.

Magruder Solar, LLC

Agency to consider PH resolution at meeting
scheduled for 3.17.21.

Project applicant has submitted Application and
is requesting Agency to adopt PH resolution.

5.

RBW Studio, LLC

Agency to consider PH resolution at meeting
scheduled for 3.17.21.

Project applicant has submitted Application and
is requesting Agency to adopt PH resolution.

6.

Romeo Enterprises, LLC

Agency to consider PH resolution at meeting
scheduled for 3.17.21.

Project applicant has submitted Application and
is requesting Agency to adopt PH resolution.

Dated: February 17, 2021
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Ulster County Industrial Development Agency /
Ulster County Capital Resource Corporation
Application for Incentives
Date:

REVISED: March 5th, 2021
Initial: February 5th, 2021

Answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.
I.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

A) Applicant:
Name:

Magruder Solar, LLC

Address:

2045 Lincoln Highway

City:

Edison

State: NJ

Federal ID/EIN:

83-0529546

Primary Contact:

Eric Millard

Title:
Phone:

Website:

Zip: 08817

www.csenergy.com/

Chief Commercial Officer
(732)535-3942

Email: emillard@csenergy.com

B) Real Estate Holding Company (if different from Applicant):
Will a separate company will hold title to/own the property related to this Project? If yes:
Name:
Address:
City:

State:

Federal ID/EIN:

Zip:

Website:

Primary Contact:
Title:
Phone:

(

)

-

Email:

Describe the terms and conditions of the lease between the Applicant and the Real Estate Holding
Company. If there is an option to purchase the property, provide the date option was signed and the date
the option expires: N/A

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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C) Current Project Site Owner (if different from Applicant or Real Estate Holding Company):
Name:

Garrison Armavida, LLC

Title:
Address: 643 Plains Road
City:

Wallkill

State: NY

Phone:

(914)213-3767

Zip: 12589

Email: cgarrisonjr@hvc.rr.com

D) Holding Company of Applicant:
Is the Applicant a subsidiary, direct, or indirect affiliate of another organization? If yes, attach an
organizational chart:
Name:

CS Energy DevCo, LLC

Address:

2045 Lincoln Highway

City:

Edison

State:

Federal ID/EIN:
Primary Contact:
Title:
Phone:

NJ

Zip:

08817

Website: www.csenergy.com
Eric Millard

Chief Commercial Officer
(732)535-3942

Email: emillard@csenergy.com

E) Attorney:
Name:

Rob Panasci

Firm Name:
Address:

Young/Sommer LLC
Executive Woods, Five Palisades Drive

City:

Albany

Phone:

(518)438-9907

State: NY
Zip: 12205
rpanasci@youngsommer.c
Email: om

F) General Contractor:
Name:

CS Energy, LLC

Firm Name:
Address:

CS Energy, LLC
2045 Lincoln Highway

City:

Edison

Phone:

(732)535-3942

State: NJ

Zip: 08817

Email: emillard@csenergy.com

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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II.

APPLICANT’S COMPANY OWNERSHIP & HISTORY

A) Company Organization:
Year founded:

2018

Type of ownership (e.g., C-Corp, LLC):

NAICS Code: 221114
LLC

B) Company Ownership:
List all stockholders, members, or partners with ownership of greater than 5% and attach an organizational
ownership chart with complete name, TIN, DOB, home address, office held, and other principal businesses (if
applicable).
Name

Office Held

Granada Solar, LLC

Sole Member

% of
Ownership
100%

Is the Applicant now a plaintiff or a defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?

% of Voting
Rights
100%

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

If yes, describe:
Is a member(s) of the Applicant’s management now a plaintiff or a defendant in
any civil or criminal litigation?
If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above ever been charged with a crime other than a minor
traffic violation?
If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a crime other than a minor
traffic violation?
If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above, any concern that such person is related to, or any
person related to this Project ever been in receivership or been adjudicated as
bankrupt?
If yes, describe:

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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C) Company Description:
Describe in detail the Company’s background, products, customers, goods and services: Magruder Solar,
LLC (Magruder Solar) is a wholly-owned project company subsidiary of Granada Solar, LLC, which is a
wholly-owned New York project development subsidary of CS Energy DevCo, LLC, the development arm
of CS Energy, a national renewable energy developer and EPC contractor. CS Energy is jointly owned by a
fund managed by Ares Infrastructure and Power Group and the Conti Group. CS Energy operates in 13
states and is in the business of developing, designing, constructing, and financing solar and energy
storage projects. The company has installed over 1GW of solar projects and has an additional 460MW of
projects under development. CS Energy is particularly focused on developing and building solar and
energy storage projects in New York State, where we are consistently ranked the top solar company in
the state. CS Energy recently opened an office in Albany to further cement its commitment to building out
New York's clean energy future.
Magruder Solar, in particular, is a 5MW community solar project. The project will be constructed on
approximately 20 acres of land in the Town of Shawangunk in Ulster County, where it is currently zoned
as a permitted use. The project will be proceeding through the permitting and grid interconnection
processes throughout 2021, is expected to start construction in the second half of 2021 and begin
commercial operation in the first half of 2022.

Major Customers: When commercially operational, Magruder Solar will sell discounted electricity
directly to residential and small commercial customers via New York's Community Distributed
Generation program, which enables community solar projects sell bill credits to customers within the
same region as the project so that those customers can lower their electricity costs. All customers must
come from within Central Hudson's service territory, and we will give first priority to customers within
the Town of Shawangunk and Ulster County.
Major Suppliers: N/A

Existing Banking Relationship(s): CS Energy has a long-term relationship with M&T Bank which the
company uses to fullfill all of its customary banking needs.

Has the Company ever received incentives tied to job creation?

Yes

No

Yes

No

If yes, describe:
Were the goals met?
If no, why not?

N/A

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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Additional sheets may be attached, if necessary.
Provide estimates in either dollar amount or percentage based on your existing Company’s business. If this is
a new Company, provide estimates based on proforma financial projections:
Estimated annual sales to customers in Ulster County:

$

75%

Estimated annual sales outside of Ulster County but within New York State:

$

25%

Estimated annual sales outside of New York State but within the U.S.:

$

0%

Estimated annual sales outside the U.S.:

$

0%

$

100%

Total

Estimated annual sales subject to local sales tax:

$

Estimated value of annual supplies, raw materials, or vendor services
that are expected to be purchased from firms in the Mid-Hudson
Economic Development Region (i.e., Dutchess, Orange, Putnam,
Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties):

$

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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III.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND DETAILS

A) Assistance requested from the Agency:
Select all that apply:
Exemption from Sales Tax
Exemption from Mortgage Tax
Exemption from Real Property Tax
Taxable Bonds
Tax-exempt Bonds (typically for non-for-profits or qualified manufacturers)
Other, specify:
B) Project Description:
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site, identifying all existing or new buildings/structures.

Plains Road and Route 300, Wallkill, NY; 107.3-1-1.100 and
107.3-1-3.110

Project Location (address/SBL):
Property Size (acres):

existing: 32.9 and 53.9

proposed: 32.9 and 53.9

Building Size (square feet):

existing:

proposed: n/a

Proposed Project Time Table:

n/a

start: 12-2021

end:

Is the Applicant the present legal owner of the Project site?
If yes:

Yes
Purchase Price:

Date of Purchase:

12-2056

No
$

If no:

Garrison Armavida, LLC

1.

Present legal owner of the Project site:

2.

Is there a relationship, legally or by common control, between the
Applicant and the present owner of the Project site?
If yes:

3.

No

Executed Option to Lease Agreement (Date information provided in #3 below is
for the Lease Option defined here)

Does the Applicant have a signed option to purchase the site?
If yes:

Yes

Date option signed:

10/24/2018

Is the Project site subject to any property tax certiorari?

Yes

Date option expires:

No
10/24/2022
Yes

No

If yes:

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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Describe the Project including, scope, purpose (e.g., new build, renovations, and/or equipment purchases,
equipment leases, etc.), timeline, and milestones. The Project scope must entail only future work, as the
Agency’s benefits are not retroactive: Magruder Solar will be a 5MW solar project located on
approximately 20 acres of leased land in the Town of Shawangunk, NY. The project will consist of
approximately 13,000 solar panels that will be mounted on a racking system that will be secured to the
ground. Additionally, the project will have solar inverters and other ancilliary electrical equipment
installed at the site to safely and properly condition and transmit the power into the local electric
distribution system. The project will start construction in the second half of 2021 and will enter
commercial operation in the first half of 2022. After the roughly six month construction timeline, the
project is expected to operate for 30 years. After the 30 year operational period, the project will be
decommissioned and the site restored to its original condition. The project prepared a decommissioning
plan that is part of the its application for a special use permit to the Town of Shawangunk. The
decommissioning plan is a requirement under the Town's Solar Law. A copy of the decommissioning plan
can be provided to the IDA Board once approved by the Town of Shawangunk.
The project will generate construction jobs during the 6 month construction phase. Renewabe energy jobs
are among the fastest growing jobs in New York State. Given the long-term commitment that New York
State has made towards a building a clean energy future, there will be long-term demand for solar
installation services in New York State. Outside of the construction jobs, long-term job prospects are
limited due to the nature of solar projects - they do not require any signfiicant operations and maintenance
labor in order to operate safely and effectively.
To make up for the lack of long term jobs created by the project, we are happy to discuss options to utilize
a portion of our PILOT budget to go towards funding a workforce development program or a 'shovelready' program in an effort to support the cause of providing long-term jobs to Ulster County.
The project will provide signfiicant benefits to Ulster County via community solar off-take, which provides
discounted electricity to participating residential and small commercial electricity users. A typical
discount, or bill credit, amounts to 10% off the total electricity bill which includes generation, delivery and
other tariff charges. The project is restricted in selling community solar subscriptions to residents within
the Central Hudson electric service territory, and the project will make a commitment to give priority to
Ulster County residents such that they have the first shot to receive the financial benefits of the projects.

Would this Project be undertaken but for the Agency’s financial assistance?

Yes

No

If no, describe why the Agency’s financial assistance is necessary and the effect the Project will have on
the Applicant’s business or operations: Magruder, as is true for all solar projects, will secure long-term
financing to fund the construciton of the facility which is supported by the long-term and stable revenues
that the project will earn over its 30 year useful life. In order for the financing structure to work, the
project also needs operating cost certainty, and a major component of the project's operating costs are
property tax payments. Therefore, establishing long-term certainty for the project's property tax
payments throughout the useful life of the project is necessary for the project to secure the financing
required for it to be built and operated. Additionally, the structure we present is a 30 year PILOT that
aligns with the project' useful life. This structure consists of 20 years of abatement with 10 years of tax
certainty. During those 10 years, the project expects to pay more in PILOT payments than it would under
the normal tax roll.
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C) Project Site Occupancy
Select Project type for all end-users at Project site (choose all that apply):
Industrial

Service*

Acquisition of existing facility

Back-office

Housing

Mixed use

Multi-tenant

Facility for Aging

Commercial

Civic facility (not-for-profit)

Retail*

Other

* The term “retail sales” means (1) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of New
York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property, as defined in
Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (2) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project
location. If “retail” or “service” is checked, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in Section IV.
List the name(s) of the expected tenant(s), nature of the business(es), and percentage of total square
footage to be used by each tenant. Additional sheets may be attached, if necessary:
Company:
1.

Nature of Business:

% of total square footage:

N/A

2.
3.
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IV.

RETAIL QUESTIONNAIRE
(Fill out if end users are “retail” or “service” as identified in Section III)
To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires
additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to
undertake either a retail sale transaction or purchase services.
A) Will any portion of the Project consist of facilities or property that will be
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who
personally visit the Project site?

Yes

No

If yes, continue with the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire. If no, do not complete the remainder of
the Retail Questionnaire.
B) What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or
property primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who
personally visit the Project?

0

%

If the answer is less than 33.33% do not complete the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire.
If the answer to Question A is Yes and the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, complete the
remainder of the Retail Questionnaire:
1.

2.

3.

Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors
from outside the Mid-Hudson Economic Development Region (i.e., Dutchess,
Orange, Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties)?

Yes

No

Will the Project make available goods or services which are not currently
reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which the
proposed Project would be located?

Yes

No

Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall
number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

If yes, explain:
4.

Will the Project be located in an area designated as an economic development
zone pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law (Source:
https://esd.ny.gov/empire-zones-program)?
If yes, explain:

5.

Will the Project be in a census tract or block numbering area (or census tract
or block numbering area contiguous thereto) which, according to the most
recent census data, has (i) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which
the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public assistance,
and (ii) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times the statewide
unemployment rate for the year to which the data relates? (Source: United
States Census Bureau https://factfinder.census.gov/)
If yes, explain:
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V.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND PERMITTING

The Applicant must comply with the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) before the Agency can
vote on proposed financial incentives. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to provide a copy of the final SEQRA
determination to the Agency.

Environmental Assessment Form:

Short Form

Long Form

Lead Agency:

Shawangunk Planning Board

Agency Contact:

Mark Watkins, Planning Board Chair

Date of submission:

3/2021

Status of submission:

Pending

Final SEQRA
determination:

7/2021

A) Site Characteristics:
Will the Project meet zoning and land use regulations for the proposed location?
Describe the present zoning and land use regulation: The current zoning for the parcel is ResidentialAgricultural 2 (R-Ag2). The purpose of this district is to provide reasonable standards for the
development of residential areas in the vicinity of established residential centers. Permitted
principal uses include agricultural, single-family dwellings, parks and playgrounds, and public
schools. R-Ag2 also allows for several Specual uses including commercial-type business, light
industrial activities, essential needs business, and various dwelling types.
Is a change in zoning and land use regulation is required? If yes, specify the required change and status
of the change request: No change is required - Magruder Solar is defined as a Large Scale Solar System
under the Town of Shawangunk’s Zoning Law, Section 177-23.1(E), and is permitted in R-Ag2.
If the proposed Project is located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is
complicating the development/use of the property, describe the potential Project challenge: n/a
B) Permits:
Describe other permits required and the status of the approval process. Attach copies of vari ances and
special permits to this Application.
Permit:

Status:

1.

Special Use Permit and Site Plan
Approval

Start 3/2021

2.

SPDES

Start 3/2021

3.

Water Quality Certification

Start 3/2021

4.

Protection of Waters Permit

Start 3/2021
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VI.

INTER-MUNICIPAL MOVE DETERMINATION

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from
the Agency’s financial assistance results in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area of the
State to another area of the State or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project
occupant located within the State, Agency financial assistance is required to prevent the Project occupant
from relocating out of the State, or it is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive
position in its respective industry.
Will the Project result in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area
of the State to another area of the State?

Yes

No

Will the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Project occupant located within the State?

Yes

No

If yes to either question above, explain how notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity
reduction, the Agency’s financial assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the
State or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its respective
industry:

Does the Project involve relocation or consolidation of a Project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State:

Yes

No

Within Ulster County:

Yes

No

If yes, explain:

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]

Page 56 of 145

11

VII.

EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

A) Current and Projected Employee Headcount

Full-time
Part-time
Seasonal

Current
Headcount
N/A
N/A
N/A

New
Year 1
N/A
N/A
N/A

Projected Headcount
New
New
Year 2
Year 3
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Total
by Year 3
N/A
N/A
N/A

B) Employment Plan in FTE
Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are expected to be retained and created as
part of this Project. One FTE is equivalent to 35 hours of work per week or 1,820 hours per year. Convert
part-time jobs into FTE by dividing the total number of hours for all part-time resources by 35 hours per
week or 1,820 hours per year.
Attach a list that describes in detail the types of employment for this Project, including the types of
activities or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new jobs.

Occupation in
Company

Current (Retained)
Permanent
FTE
Average
Annual
Number of
Salary or
Current FTE
Hourly Wage1

Projected New Permanent FTE
FTE in
Year 1

FTE in
Year 2

FTE in
Year 3

Total
New FTE
by Year 3

Professional/
Management

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Administrative

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Sales

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Services

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

High-Skilled

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Medium-Skilled

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Basic-Skilled

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/AN/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Manufacturing

Other (specify)

Wages are defined as all remuneration paid to an employee. Remuneration means every form of compensation for employment paid by an
employer to an employee; whether paid directly or indirectly by the employer, including salaries, commissions, bonuses, and the reasonable money
value of board, rent, housing, lodging, or similar advantage received. Where gratuities are received from a person other than the employer, the
value of such gratuities shall be included as part of the remuneration paid by the employer. Source: https://labor.ny.gov.
1
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C) Estimated Wages and Incentives
What is the estimated percentage of FTEs (retained and new) will receive the following hourly wage 2 and
benefits or more?
Less than $12.34

N/A%

$12.35 - 18.52

N/A%

$18.53 – 24.69

N/A%

$24.70 or above

N/A%
Total

100%

Estimate the percentage of the current workforce whose wages meet or exceed the
livable wage for Ulster County as defined by the Living Wage Calculator,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Updated 2016 NY
(http://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/36111 for 1 adult):
Will the Applicant pay a livable wage for Ulster County, as defined by the Living
Wage Calculator for 1 adult, to all employees for the duration of the Agency’s
incentives?

N/A

Yes

Estimate the percentage of residents of the Mid-Hudson Region (Dutchess, Orange,
Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties) who are expected to fill
the projected new jobs at the end of year three (3) years after Project completion:

%

No

N/A

%

Describe the benefits you offer or plan to offer to your employees: N/A

Describe the internal training and advancement opportunities you offer or plan to offer to your
employees: N/A

The wages are based on most recently available data from Q2 2017, annualized by multiplying quarterly wages by four (4) and adjusting for 35
hours of work per week. Source: Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW) for Ulster County for All Industries.
2
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VIII.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RESOURCES

Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are contracted to independent contractors (e.g.,
contractors or subcontractors) that would be retained and created as part of this Project.
Attach a list that describes in detail the types of contract resources for this Project, including the types of
activities or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new contractor positions.
III. CONSTRUCTION LABOR
Current
Projected
Headcount
New
New
New
Total
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
by Year 3
Full-time
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
Part-time
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
Seasonal
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

IX.

CONSTRUCTION LABOR

Number of construction workers expected to be hired for this Project:

40

Does the Applicant utilize contractors who:
Have a certified apprenticeship program?

Yes

%

No

Pay a prevailing wage?

Yes

100 %

No

Pay a living wage as defined by the Living Wage
Calculator for 1 adult?

Yes

100 %

No

Use construction labor from Ulster, Greene, Delaware,
Sullivan, Orange, Dutchess or Columbia counties?

Yes

100 %

No

Describe the general contractor’s plans and selection process for using regional construction labor or
regional sub-contractors: CS Energy utilizes best efforts to source labor locally for all of its projects via
direct hire labor and subcontractors. We often find it is beneficial to hire locally for price reasons and
also because local subcontractor and labor often have relationships within the community which can be
beneficial to the success of the overall project. CS Energy is constructing projects in the Mid-Hudson
Region and has been able to utilize local contractors to support the civil and electrical scopes for similar
solar projects. For the Magruder Solar project, CS Energy engaged with the Hudson Valley Building
Trades Council and signed a memorandum of agreement to utilize members of its organization for
construction of the project. A copy of this agreement was provided in confidentiality to the Board for
review.
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X.

PROJECT COSTS AND FINANCING

Attach additional
A) Project Costs
Estimated Amount
Land Acquisition:

20

acres

$0

Building Acquisition:

0

square feet

$0

New Building Construction:

0

square feet

$0

Building Addition(s):

0

square feet

$0

Infrastructure Work:
Reconstruction/Renovation:

$310,000
0

square feet

$0

Manufacturing Equipment:

$6,238,838

Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.):

$295,788

Soft Costs (professional services, labor, etc.):

$1,868,207

Other (specify):

$0
TOTAL:

$8,712,833

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this application?
Yes
No
If yes, describe: A total of $28,750 have been paid as of the date of this application. This amount
includes fees paid for the Option to lease and fees associated with the electrical interconnection study
process.
B) Sources of Funds for Project Costs
Equity:

$4,152,146

Bank Financing:

$0

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance:

$0

Taxable Bond Issuance

$0

Public Sources (Include total of all State and Federal grants and tax credits):

$4,560,686

Identify each State and Federal program:
NYSERDA

$2,375,950

Federal Investment Tax Credit

$2,184,736
$

Additional sheets may be attached, as necessary.

TOTAL:

Amount of total financing requested from lending institutions:

$8,712,833
$0

Amount of total financing related to existing debt refinancing:
Has a commitment for financing been received?

$0
Yes

No

If yes:
Lending Institution:
Contact:
UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]
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XI.

UCIDA UNIFORM TAX POLICY MATRIX – PILOT POINTS CALCULATION

UCIDA’s Uniform Tax Policy Matrix is applicable to Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (‘UTEP’) Categories 1-4.
Projected New FTE Jobs3 to be Created – ONLY CHOOSE ONE. IF ANY
 5-9 – (1 point)
 10-49 – (2 points)
 50+ - (3 points plus 1 point for every additional 15 jobs)

0 # of FTE

Current (Retained) FTE Jobs – ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY
 5-29 – (1 point)
 30-99 – (2 points)
 100+ - (3 points)

0 # of FTE

_____

_____

Projected Wages4 - ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY




All jobs over LW – (1 point)
25% of FTE earn over 150% LW plus benefits – (2 points)
25% of FTE earn over between 150% LW and 200% LW plus 25%
FTE earn over 200% LW plus benefits – (3 points)

Construction Workforce – ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY




_____

Enter Point Value

workforce5

75% regional
(Ulster County & neighbors) – (1 point)
50% paid prevailing wages – (2 points)
75% paid prevailing wage – (3 points)

_____

Environmentally Sustainable – (If any of the following apply, 2 points)
 Use of existing industrial site or brownfield
 Construction at a shovel-ready site or in a designated
business park
 Use of energy-efficient technology
 Use of significant renewable energy

Enter Point Value

Community Investment – CHOOSE AS MANY AS APPLICABLE

Enter Point Value







_____

_____
_____

Project within ¼ mile of public transit – (1 point)
In economically distressed area of County6 - (2 points)

Educational/ Workforce Investment – CHOOSE AS MANY AS APPLICABLE

3

Enter Point Value

Enter Point Value

At least 50% of workforce has advanced educational
credential – (2 points)
Workforce housing or senior/disabled housing – (3 points)

_____
_____

One FTE is equivalent to 35 hours of work per week or 1,820 hours per year.

The wages for each PILOT point level are based on most recently available data annualized by multiplying quarterly wages by four (4) and
adjusting for 35 hours of work per week. Source: Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW) for Ulster County for All Industries.
4

5

Regional labor refers to workers residing in Ulster, Greene, Delaware, Sullivan, Orange, Dutchess, and Columbia counties.

Economic distress applies if one or more of the following criteria is met: 1) The unemployment rate is, for the most recent 24-month period for
which data are available, at least one percentage point higher than the national average unemployment rate; 2) Per capita income is, for the most
recent period for which data are available, 80 percent or less of the national average per capita income; or 3) The area is subject to a "special
condition" resulting from severe short- or long-term changes in economic conditions, such as the shutdown of a major employer or the loss of a
significant industry. See US Economic Development Adminitration,13 CFR 301.3 (www.eda.gov)
6
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Total Points
XII.

5

ESTIMATED VALUE OF INCENTIVES

A) Property Tax Exemption:
Agency staff will complete this section with the Applicant based on information submitted by the
Applicant and the local taxing jurisdiction’s Assessor.
Current assessed full value of the property before Project improvements:
$173,684
Estimated assessed value of Project improvements (i.e., increase in value of
the property’s assessment with the Project improvements)

$2,000,000

Estimated new assessed full value of property after Project improvements

$2,173,684

Estimated real property tax rate per dollar of full assessment

$168.57

Assumed annual increase in assessment and tax rate

n/a%

Abatement schedule based on PILOT Points Calculation results
Estimated PILOT property tax abatements over 30 years

PILOT
Year

1

A
Existing Real
Property
Taxes

B
Estimated
Real Property
Taxes
Without
PILOT7

C=A+B
Estimated
Total
Without
PILOT

See
Attachment
"Addendum XII.
Estimated
Value of
Incentives

$709,942

D
% of PILOT
Exemption,
according to
Abatement
Schedule

E = B x (1-D)
Estimated
PILOT
Payments
With PILOT

F=A+E
Estimated
Total With
PILOT

%

2

%

3

%

4

%

5

%

6

%

7

%

8

%

9

%

10

%

11

%

The figures in this column assume that the Project is completed as described in the Application and without the involvement of the Agency and,
therefore, subject to real property taxes. However, as provided in this Application, the Applicant has certified that it would not undertake the
Project without the financial assistance granted by the Agency. Accordingly, this column is prepared solely for the purpose of determining the
estimated amount of the real property tax abatement being granted by the Agency.
7

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]

Page 62 of 145

17

12

%

13

%

14

%

15

%

Total

--

If the Applicant is requesting incentives that are greater than the Agency’s standard tax exemptions,
describe the incentives and provide a justification for this Deviated PILOT request 8:

B) Sales and Use Tax Benefit:
Note: The figures below will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance and
represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may authorize with respect to
the application.
Costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local sales and use tax 9:

$295,788

Estimated State and local sales and use tax benefit (sales tax amount multiplied by
8.0% plus additional use tax amounts):

$23,663

C) Mortgage Recording Tax Benefit:
Mortgage amount (include construction, permanent, bridge financing or refinancing):

$1,707,562

Estimated mortgage recording tax exemption benefit (mortgage amount multiplied
by 0.75%):

$12,806

D) For bond applicants only: (Projected
First Year Debt Service:
Total Debt Service:

year borrowing term)
Without Bonds
$
$

With Bonds
$
$

E) Percentage of Project Costs Financed from Public Sector:
Percentage of Project costs financed from public sector: 60.9%
(Total B + C + D + E below / A Total Project Cost)

8

Historically, the Agency has required consent from all local taxing jurisdictions before approving a Deviated PILOT.

Sales and use tax (sales tax) is applied to: tangible personal property (unless specifically exempt); gas, electricity, refrigeration and steam, and
telephone service; selected services; food and beverages sold by restaurants, taverns, and caterers; hotel occupancy; and certain admission charges
and dues. For a definition of products, services, and transactions subject to sales tax see the following links:
https://www.tax.ny.gov/bus/st/subject.htm and
https://www.tax.ny.gov/pubs_and_bulls/tg_bulletins/st/quick_reference_guide_for_taxable_and_exempt_property_and_services.htm.
9
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A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

Total Project Cost:
Estimated Value of PILOT:
Estimated Value of Sales Tax Incentive:
Estimated Value of Mortgage Tax Incentive:
Total Other Public Incentives (tax credits, grants, ESD incentives, etc.):
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XIII.

OTHER

Is there anything else the Agency’s board should know regarding this Project?
Our Magruder Solar project will provide significant benefits to the community without utilizing any local
services or costing taxpayers anything. The project will generate clean, cost effective electricity for local
residents and businesses who subscribe to the project. The project will prioritize residents of the Town
and County to ensure the benefits of the project remain local. Additionally, the project will provide much
needed reveneues to the communities and participate in 'shovel-ready' site programs to attract
businesses and jobs to the area. Our project is ready to direct resources to the community and the IDA to
maximize value for the public. This type of project aligns well with the overwhleming public interest in
climate change and the transition to clean energy
CS Energy is heavily invested in the State of New York and its goal to expand its clean energy industry. In
the Spring 2020, CS Energy opened a regional office in Albany in support of the expansion of our New
York based construction teams. CS Energy continues to expand its workforce in the State given the
significant investment in solar energy projects, and more specifically in Ulster County and the MidHudson region.
Over the last 3 years, CS Energy hosted 6 career fair events and attended 8 college job fairs in New York
State to hire in-state resources for our team. CS Energy will continue to host and maintain the frequency
of these events moving forward due to the high demand for resources to support the anticipated growth
of renewable energy projects in the state to meet the state’s clean energy goal. CS Energy will focus on
and advertise to Ulster County and the Mid-Hudson region for its upcoming job fairs through local
engagements, social media, and relationships established in the region. CS Energy can further commit to
offering a career fair in Ulster County. These opportunities will offer residents of the region employment
opportunities in the industry or with CS Energy. Job opportunities with CS Energy range from laborers
and electricians doing solar installations to project managers and engineers supporting the construction
of the projects.
In addition to targeting events to Ulster County residents for job opportunities in the renewable energy
industry, CS Energy can support programs and initiatives for young adults who are pursuing a technical
career that aligns with the needs of the industry. CS Energy can support and bolster programs with
scholarships and/or internships at Career and Technical schools to create a path towards employment in
the industry. CS Energy can also provide support to ensure Career and Technical Education Programs
are adequately funded so more students are able to participate and obtain the necessary career skills and
employment opportunities. CS Energy is engaged with the Ulster County Economic Development office
to discuss the County's Green New Deal and workforce development opportunities. Additionally, the
County is creating a consortium of business leaders in the industry and education institutions to develop
the programs and opportunities necessary to train and prepare individuals for careers in clean energy.
CS Energy has stated its interest to participate in the consortium to support the County's and Region's
efforts. CS Energy has a call scheduled with the Economic Development group during the week of March
8th, and will obtain a letter of support which we will provide to the Board upon receipt.
CS Energy scheduled an introductory call with Chairman Kenneth Ronk, Jr., on February 3 rd, 2021, to
introduce the Magruder Solar Project and learn how we can best serve the County through our project.
Chairman Ronk was very interested in the status of the project and our interactions to date with the
Town and IDA. The Chairman was very happy to learn of the project and offered his support to ensure
the success of the project. We are working with Chairman Ronk on a letter for support and will provide
to the Board upon receipt. .
Finally, as noted in Section IX, CS Energy recently entered into a memorandum of agreement with the
Hudson Valley Building Trades Council to utilize members of its organization for construction of the
Magruder Solar project. A copy of this agreement was provided in confidentiality to the Board for
UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]

Page 65 of 145

20

review. Leaders of the organization were very supportive of this approach and the benefits it will
provide for the local community.
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Magruder Solar Organizational Chart
Organizational chart for the Project that lists the participants and identifies the corporate structure,
including general and limited partners.

CS Energy, LLC
EIN: 82-0895936
Granada Solar, LLC
EIN: 82-2204381
Magruder Solar, LLC
EIN: 83-0529546

Magruder Solar, LLC, is a fully owned subsidiary of Granada Solar, LLC, which is a fully owned subsidiary
of CS Energy.
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Addendum - XII. Estimated Value of Incentives
Magruder Solar - UCIDA Application for Incentives
Dated February 5, 2021

Pilot
Year
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
TOTAL

A

B

Existing Real
Property Taxes

Estimated Real
Property Taxes
without PILOT

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
5,563.07
166,892.12

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

32,029.84
34,017.90
35,785.06
37,331.33
38,656.70
39,761.18
40,644.76
41,307.45
41,749.24
41,970.13
41,970.13
39,761.18
37,552.23
35,343.27
33,134.32
30,925.36
28,716.41
26,507.45
24,298.50
22,089.54
19,880.59
17,671.64
15,462.68
13,253.73
11,044.77
8,835.82
6,626.86
4,417.91
2,208.95
0.00
802,954.94

C=A+B

D

E = B x (1-D)

F=A+E

Estimated Total
Without PILOT

% of PILOT
Exemption, according
to Abatement
Schedule

Estimated PILOT
Payments with
PILOT

Estimated Total
with PILOT

Special District
Tax

Project Assessment and
Depreciation Schedule

Project Assessment
Value and
Depreciation Schedule

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

37,592.91
39,580.97
41,348.13
42,894.40
44,219.77
45,324.25
46,207.83
46,870.52
47,312.31
47,533.21
47,533.21
45,324.25
43,115.30
40,906.34
38,697.39
36,488.43
34,279.48
32,070.52
29,861.57
27,652.62
25,443.66
23,234.71
21,025.75
18,816.80
16,607.84
14,398.89
12,189.93
9,980.98
7,772.03
5,563.07
969,847.06

45%
48%
49%
50%
51%
51%
52%
51%
51%
50%
49%
45%
41%
36%
30%
24%
16%
8%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
12%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

17,500.00
17,850.00
18,207.00
18,571.14
18,942.56
19,321.41
19,707.84
20,102.00
20,504.04
20,914.12
21,332.40
21,759.05
22,194.23
22,638.12
23,090.88
23,552.70
24,023.75
24,504.22
24,994.31
25,494.20
26,004.08
26,524.16
27,054.64
27,595.74
28,147.65
28,710.60
29,284.82
29,870.51
30,467.92
31,077.28
709,941.39

23,063.07
23,413.07
23,770.07
24,134.21
24,505.63
24,884.48
25,270.91
25,665.07
26,067.11
26,477.19
26,895.47
27,322.12
27,757.30
28,201.19
28,653.95
29,115.77
29,586.82
30,067.30
30,557.38
31,057.27
31,567.15
32,087.23
32,617.71
33,158.81
33,710.72
34,273.68
34,847.89
35,433.58
36,030.99
36,640.35
876,833.51

4,188.31
4,043.88
3,899.46
3,755.03
3,610.61
3,466.18
3,321.76
3,177.34
3,032.91
2,888.49
2,744.06
2,599.64
2,455.21
2,310.79
2,166.37
2,021.94
1,877.52
1,733.09
1,588.67
1,444.24
1,299.82
1,155.39
1,010.97
866.55
722.12
577.70
433.27
288.85
144.42
0.00
62,824.59

380,000.00
366,896.55
353,793.10
340,689.66
327,586.21
314,482.76
301,379.31
288,275.86
275,172.41
262,068.97
248,965.52
235,862.07
222,758.62
209,655.17
196,551.72
183,448.28
170,344.83
157,241.38
144,137.93
131,034.48
117,931.03
104,827.59
91,724.14
78,620.69
65,517.24
52,413.79
39,310.34
26,206.90
13,103.45
0.00

2,000,000.00
1,931,034.48
1,862,068.97
1,793,103.45
1,724,137.93
1,655,172.41
1,586,206.90
1,517,241.38
1,448,275.86
1,379,310.34
1,310,344.83
1,241,379.31
1,172,413.79
1,103,448.28
1,034,482.76
965,517.24
896,551.72
827,586.21
758,620.69
689,655.17
620,689.66
551,724.14
482,758.62
413,793.10
344,827.59
275,862.07
206,896.55
137,931.03
68,965.52
0.00

Town
County
School
Special District - Ambulance
Special District - Fire
Special District - Library

Equalization Latest Tax
Rate
Rate
19.00%
18.52
19.00%
20.746045
19.00% 129.312058
19.00%
0.994705
19.00%
6.329122
19.00%
3.698031
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PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION
MAGRUDER SOLAR, LLC PROJECT
A regular meeting of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was convened
on March 17, 2021 at 9:00 o’clock a.m., local time, in public session via video conference as authorized
pursuant to Executive Order No. 202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M.
Cuomo, suspending provisions of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access
to public meetings and authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or
similar service.
The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chair of the Agency and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:
PRESENT:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

Chair
Vice Chair/Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Chief Financial Officer/Member

Each of the members present participated in the meeting telephonically pursuant to Executive Order No.
202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M. Cuomo, suspending provisions
of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access to public meetings and
authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or similar service.
ABSENT:

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING:
Rose Woodworth
A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq.
The following resolution
_____________________, to wit:

Chief Executive Officer
Agency and Special Counsel
was

offered

by

__________________,

seconded

by

Resolution No. 0321RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF ULSTER
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE
BENEFIT OF MAGRUDER SOLAR, LLC.
WHEREAS, Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized and
empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of Article
18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the
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“Enabling Act”) and Chapter 787 of the 1976 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 923 of
said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial
and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living,
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the
Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act), or to cause
said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease
said projects with the obligation to purchase; and
WHEREAS, Magruder Solar, LLC, a State of Delaware limited liability company (the
“Company”), has presented an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application
is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the
“Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition
of an interest in a portion of an approximately 86 acres parcel of land located at Plains Road and Route 300
(Tax Map Number 107.3-1-3.110) in the Town of Shawangunk, Ulster County, New York and 2296 Route
300 (Tax Map Number 107.3-1-1.100) in the Town of Shawangunk, Ulster County, New York (collectively,
the “Land”), (2) the construction on the Land of an approximately 5 MW community solar energy
generating facility, consisting of solar panels, together with a racking system, solar inverters and other
ancillary electrical equipment to be installed on the Land (all said improvements being collectively referred
to as the “Facility”) and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of related fixtures,
machinery, equipment and other personal property (the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility and the
Equipment being collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to constitute a solar
energy generating facility to be owned and operated by the Company; (B) the granting of certain “financial
assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including
potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and
mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation
to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by
the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial
assistance” (as defined in the Act) of more than $100,000 to any project, the Agency, among other things,
must hold a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to said project; and
WHEREAS, the Agency desires to provide for compliance with the provisions of Section 859-a of
the Act with respect to the Project;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF ULSTER COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
The Agency hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency, after
consultation with the members of the Agency and Agency Counsel, (A) that due to the (1) ban on large
meetings or gatherings pursuant to Executive Order 202.1 issued on March 12, 2020, as supplemented, (2)
ban on non-essential gatherings of individuals of any size for any reason pursuant to Executive Order 202.10
issued on March 23, 2020, as supplemented and (3) suspension of the Open Meetings Law relating to public
hearings pursuant to Executive Order 202.15 issued on April 9, 2020, as supplemented, each as issued by
Governor Cuomo, during the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, to establish the time, date and
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electronic method of either conference call or webinar of conducting a public hearing of the Agency to hear
all persons interested in the Project (the “Public Hearing”); provided, however, when the ban is lifted or the
Executive Orders are rescinded, the Chief Executive Officer shall establish the time, date and place for the
Public Hearing, which Public Hearing will be held in a city, town or village where the Project Facility is or
is to be located, (B) to cause notice of such Public Hearing to be given to the public by publishing a notice
or notices of such Public Hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of the
governmental units where the Project Facility is or is to be located, such notice or notices to comply with
the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (C) to cause notice of the Public Hearing to be given to the
chief executive officer of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project
Facility is or is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (D) to conduct
such Public Hearing; (E) to cause a report of the Public Hearing fairly summarizing the views presented at
such Public Hearing (the “Report”) to be prepared; and (F) to cause a copy of the Report to be made
available to the members of the Agency.
Section 2.
The Chair, Vice Chair and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby
authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things
or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution.
Section 3.
All action taken by the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency in connection with
the Public Hearing with respect to the Project prior to the date of this Resolution is hereby ratified and
confirmed.
Section 4.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which
resulted as follows:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING

________
________
________
________
________
________
________

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.
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STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ULSTER

)
) SS.:
)

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of
the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, held on March 17,
2021 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said
original and of such Resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates
to the subject matters therein referred to.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting;
(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the
“Open Meetings Law”) except as modified by Executive Order 202.1, as supplemented, said meeting was
open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in
accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present, either in-person or appearing telephonically in accordance with Executive Order 202.1, as
supplemented, throughout said meeting.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force and effect
and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this
_____ day of March, 2021.
_____________________________________
(Assistant) Secretary

(SEAL)
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Ulster County Industrial Development Agency /
Ulster County Capital Resource Corporation
Application for Incentives
March/5/2021

Date:
Answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.
I.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

A) Applicant:
Name:

RBW Studio LLC

Address:

67 34th Street #5, Floor 6

City:

Brooklyn

State:NY

Federal ID/EIN:

26-3751818

Primary Contact:

Charles Brill

Title:

Zip:11232

Website:

www.rbw.com

Managing Partner

Phone:

Email: charles@rbw.com

B) Real Estate Holding Company (if different from Applicant):
Will a separate company will hold title to/own the property related to this Project? If yes:
Name:

LE KINGSTON TROIS LLC

Address:

67 34th Street

City:

Brooklyn

Federal ID/EIN:
Primary Contact:
Title:

State:

86-1241364

Website:

NY

Zip: 11232
none

Charles Brill

Partner
(

Phone:

Email: charles@rbw.com

Describe the terms and conditions of the lease between the Applicant and the Real Estate Holding
Company. If there is an option to purchase the property, provide the date option was signed and the
date the option expires: The Holding Company will be held 100% by the current RBW Studio LLC
owners.

1
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C) Current Project Site Owner (if different from Applicant or Real Estate Holding Company):
Name:

935 Associates LLC

Title:

Seller / Owner

Address:

225 Greenfield Parkway

City:

Liverpool

Phone:

(

)

State:NY

-

Zip:13088

Email:℅ Joe Deegan SVN Broker

D) Holding Company of Applicant:
Is the Applicant a subsidiary, direct, or indirect affiliate of another organization? If yes, attach an organizational chart:
Name:

N/A

Address:
City:

State:

Federal ID/EIN:

Zip:

Website:

Primary Contact:
Title:
Phone:

(

)

-

Email:

E) Attorney:
Name:

Michael Morrielo

Firm Name:

Moriello Law

Address:

111 Green Street

City:

Kingston

State:NY

Phone:

Zip:12401

Email:

F) General Contractor:
Name:

Not yet chosen - Design / Schematic Design phase

Firm Name:
Address:
City:
Phone:

State:
(

)

-

Zip:

Email:

2
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II.

APPLICANT’S COMPANY OWNERSHIP & HISTORY

A) Company Organization:
Year founded:

2009

Type of ownership (e.g., C-Corp, LLC):

NAICS Code:

335112

LLC

B) Company Ownership:
List all stockholders, members, or partners with ownership of greater than 5% and attach an organizational
ownership chart with complete name, TIN, DOB, home address, office held, and other principal businesses (if
applicable).
Name

Office Held

Charles Brill
Alex Williams
Theo Richardson

% of Ownership
33.3%
33.3%
33.3%

Is the Applicant now a plaintiff or a defendant in any civil or criminal litigation?

% of Voting Rights
33.3%
33.3%
33.3%

☐ Yes

X No

☐ Yes

X No

If yes, describe:
Is a member(s) of the Applicant’s management now a plaintiff or a defendant in any
civil or criminal litigation?
If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above ever been charged with a crime other than a minor
traffic violation?

☐ Yes

X No

If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above ever been convicted of a crime other than a minor traffic ☐ Yes
violation?
If yes, describe:
Has any person listed above, any concern that such person is related to, or any person
☐ Yes
related to this Project ever been in receivership or been adjudicated as bankrupt?

X No

X No

If yes, describe:

3
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C) Company Description:

Describe in detail the Company’s background, products, customers, goods and services:
RBW was founded by three product designers in 2008. Our business has been entirely self-funded.
Through the support of our customers, we have been able to grow the business. This project is
the next phase in establishing a generational business and investing in the real estate to make
this happen is a vital step. As an award-winning, independent design and manufacturing
company headquartered in Industry City, Brooklyn, RBW is a brand for architects and designers
looking for a higher quality of light. By listening closely to the needs of our customers, RBW’s
forward-thinking, technology-driven approach invents lighting solutions that are out of the
ordinary—products that take on unprecedented shapes, or make subtle upgrades on familiar
forms. Each of our collections embodies a distinct personality while upholding the hallmarks of
RBW’s family DNA: Intuitive ease and simplicity. Integrity of craft and material. High-quality
lighting with a playful point of view. Meticulously engineered for a broad range of applications,
RBW lighting has been installed all over the world, from the renowned Noma restaurant in
Copenhagen to Fortune 500 company offices across the United States.

Major Customers:
Architects, Designers, Corporate and Individuals including Google Corporate offices, Panera Bread,
Starbucks, Avalon Properties (common areas)

Major Suppliers:
National Supply Chain but developing Local and regional supply chain relationships.

Existing Banking Relationship(s):
Currently Banking with Chase Bank and in the process of creating local Financial institution relationships.

Has the Company ever received incentives tied to job creation?

☐ Yes

X No

We did participate in a Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce OJT program
If yes, describe:
☐ Yes

Were the goals met?
If no, why not?

☐ No

N/A
4
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Additional sheets may be attached, if necessary.
Provide estimates in either dollar amount or percentage based on your existing Company’s business. If this is a
new Company, provide estimates based on proforma financial projections:
Estimated annual sales to customers in Ulster County:

$280,000

2 %

Estimated annual sales outside of Ulster County but within New York State:

$6,830,000

47%

Estimated annual sales outside of New York State but within the U.S.:

$6,515,000

45%

Estimated annual sales outside the U.S.:

$940,000
Total

$14,565,000

6 %
100%

Estimated annual sales subject to local sales tax:

$

280,000

%

Estimated value of annual supplies, raw materials, or vendor services
that are expected to be purchased from firms in the Mid-Hudson
Economic Development Region (i.e., Dutchess, Orange, Putnam,
Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties):

$

925,000

%

5
UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted [date]

Page 77 of 145

III.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND DETAILS

A) Assistance requested from the Agency:
Select all that apply:
X Exemption from Sales Tax
X Exemption from Mortgage Tax
X Exemption from Real Property Tax
☐ Taxable Bonds
☐ Tax-exempt Bonds (typically for non-for-profits or qualified manufacturers)
☐ Other, specify:
B) Project Description:
Attach a map, survey or sketch of the Project site, identifying all existing or new buildings/structures.
Project Location (address/SBL):

521-599 Boices Lane -Town Of Ulster SBL 48.7-2-37.21

Property Size (acres):

existing:14.4 +/-

proposed:N/A

Building Size (square feet):

existing:98,000 +/-

proposed:N/A

Proposed Project Time Table:

start:May 2021

end: May 2022

☐ Yes

Is the Applicant the present legal owner of the Project site?
If yes:

Date of Purchase:

N/A

Purchase Price:

X No
$

If no:

935 Associates LLC

1.

Present legal owner of the Project site:

2.

Is there a relationship, legally or by common control, between the
Applicant and the present owner of the Project site?

☐ Yes

X No

X Yes

☐ No

If yes:
3.

Does the Applicant have a signed option to purchase the site?
If yes:

Date option signed:

11/05/20

Is the Project site subject to any property tax certiorari?

Date option expires:

04/01/21
☐ Yes

X No

If yes:

6
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Describe the Project including, scope, purpose (e.g., new build, renovations, and/or equipment
purchases, equipment leases, etc.), timeline, and milestones. The Project scope must entail only future
work, as the Agency’s benefits are not retroactive:
RBW Studio LLC has begun planning the redevelopment of an outdated 100K SF office space located in Kingston
located at 521 Boices Ln. to become the factory of the future. The new factory structure will be the first module
of a potential future campus, with an aim to sustain our growth until approximately 8x that of our current scale.
Our vision at RBW is to benefit all stakeholders from our collective efforts. Together we are building an
organization that makes a positive impact on society, the environment, with our customers and our employees.
Investment in the building will include a new roof, solar panels, energy-efficient LED lighting, including BIM and
Enlighted sensors for occupancy, daylight harvesting, and dimming controls. Totaling 3-5M investment
current scale.1st stage planning: 80,000 SF (20,000 SF of office) level and 60,000 SF production facility. The
facility will support research and development of new energy-efficient light sources for commercial and
residential settings, along with developing a Manufacturing 4.0 test center with the use of Collaborative Robotics
is a part of the future. People will remain the central focus. However, robots will make people achieve greater
accuracy and will support people and give them entirely new capabilities. In the future, we will need to train
product specialists toward automation support and develop in-house ability to effectively manage and produce
via automation.

Would this Project be undertaken but for the Agency’s financial assistance?

☐ Yes

X No

If no, describe why the Agency’s financial assistance is necessary and the effect the Project will have on the
Applicant’s business or operations:
RBW was founded by three product designers in 2008. Our business has been entirely self-funded. Through
the support of our customers, we have been able to grow the business. This project is the next phase in
stabilizing our business and investing in the realestate to make this happen is a vital step. Due to the
growth rate of our business and investing in new technologies and team members cash flow is always a
constraint. This is a major step for us and will not be possible if not for the availability of Favorable
guaranteed funding and a host of Federal State and Local Economic and Community development
incentives to support RBW in it’s growth and expansion plan. We are facing major hurdles since the cost of
construction materials has grown so quickly while we are simultaneously facing supply chain and
distribution challenges due to Covid.
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C) Project Site Occupancy
Select Project type for all end-users at Project site (choose all that apply):
☐Service*

xIndustrial
☐Acquisition of existing facility

☐Back-office

☐Housing

☐Mixed use

xMulti-tenant

☐Facility for Aging

xCommercial

☐Civic facility (not-for-profit)

☐Retail*

☐Other

* The term “retail sales” means (1) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of New York
(the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property, as defined in Section
1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (2) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project location.
If “retail” or “service” is checked, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in Section IV.

List the name(s) of the expected tenant(s), nature of the business(es), and percentage of total square footage
to be used by each tenant. Additional sheets may be attached, if necessary:
Company:

Nature of Business:

% of total square footage:

1.

Ulster Co.

Office

10%

2.

Taconic DDSO

Office

10%

3.

Birnie Bus

Parking

Park Lot space

***During our growth phase, we expect to have excess light manufacturing / assembly and maker
space available for short term rental to other local businesses. This will create a unique local place for
other businesses to incubate and help create more opportunities for the community long term. .
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IV.

RETAIL QUESTIONNAIRE
(Fill out if end users are “retail” or “service” as identified in Section III)
To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional
information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either
a retail sale transaction or purchase services.
A) Will any portion of the Project consist of facilities or property that will be
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally ☐ Yes
visit the Project site?

X No

If yes, continue with the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire. If no, do not complete the remainder of
the Retail Questionnaire.
B) What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or
property primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who
personally visit the Project?

N/A

%

If the answer is less than 33.33% do not complete the remainder of the Retail Questionnaire.
If the answer to Question A is Yes and the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, complete the
remainder of the Retail Questionnaire:
1.

2.

3.

Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors
from outside the Mid-Hudson Economic Development Region (i.e., Dutchess,
Orange, Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties)?

Yes

No

Will the Project make available goods or services which are not currently
reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which the
proposed Project would be located?

Yes

No

Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall
number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

Yes

No

If yes, explain:

4.

The planned project would be an additional facility

Will the Project be located in an area designated as an economic development zone
pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law (Source:
☐ Yes
https://esd.ny.gov/empire-zones-program)?

X No

If yes, explain:

5.

Will the Project be in a census tract or block numbering area (or census tract or
block numbering area contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent
census data, has (i) a poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which the data
relates, or at least 20% of households receiving public assistance, and (ii) an
unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times the statewide unemployment rate for
the year to which the data relates? (Source: United States Census Bureau
https://factfinder.census.gov/)

☐ Yes

XNo

If yes, explain:
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V.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND PERMITTING

The Applicant must comply with the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) before the Agency can
ote on proposed financial incentives. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to provide a copy of the final SEQRA
etermination to the Agency.
Environmental Assessment Form: X Short Form ☐ Long Form
Lead Agency:

Town of Ulster Planning Board Site Plan has been approved January 2021

Agency Contact:
Date of submission:
Status of submission:
Final SEQRA
determination:

A) Site Characteristics:
Will the Project meet zoning and land use regulations for the proposed location?
Describe the present zoning and land use regulation:

Zoning is OM / Office and Manufacturing

Is a change in zoning and land use regulation is required? If yes, specify the required change and status of
the change request:
N/A
If the proposed Project is located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is
complicating the development/use of the property, describe the potential Project challenge:
N/A
B) Permits:
Describe other permits required and the status of the approval process. Attach copies of variances and special
ermits to this Application.
Permit:
1.

Building Permit

Status:
In Design Phase

2.
3.
4.
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VI.

INTER-MUNICIPAL MOVE DETERMINATION

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from
the Agency’s financial assistance results in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area of the
State to another area of the State or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project
occupant located within the State, Agency financial assistance is required to prevent the Project occupant from
relocating out of the State, or it is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position
in its respective industry.
Will the Project result in the removal of a plant of the Project occupant from one area of X Yes
the State to another area of the State?

No

Will the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Project occupant located within the State?

No

X Yes

If yes to either question above, explain how notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity
reduction, the Agency’s financial assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of
the State or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its
respective industry:
The company will retain Sales, Marketing and Showroom in New York city. The 10,000 SF Brooklyn
Assembly facility has an expiring lease in 2021. Due to increasing rent costs and the requirement for
additional operational space it is not competitive to renew the lease in the current location of 67 34th
Street Brooklyn. The relocation to Kingston will support operational improvements and support the ability
for the company to continue to have a competitive offering in the lighting manufacturing space. The Town
of Ulster facility will allow us to bring production in house as well as relocate our 3PL warehouse and
logistics from NJ to our new location. The closure of the NJ location will bring additional jobs to the
Kingston facility.
Does the Project involve relocation or consolidation of a Project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State:

X Yes ☐No

Within Ulster County:

☐Yes X No

If yes, explain: See explanation above
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VII.

EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

A) Current and Projected Employee Headcount

Full-time
Part-time
Seasonal

Current
Headcount
30
N/A
N/A

Projected Headcount
New
New
Year 2
Year 3
5
6
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

New
Year 1
7
N/A
N/A

Total
by Year 3
18
N/A
N/A

B) Employment Plan in FTE
Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are expected to be retained and created as part of
this Project. One FTE is equivalent to 35 hours of work per week or 1,820 hours per year. Convert part-time
jobs into FTE by dividing the total number of hours for all part-time resources by 35 hours per week or 1,820
hours per year.
Attach a list that describes in detail the types of employment for this Project, including the types of activities
or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new jobs.

Occupation in
Company
Professional/
Management
Administrative
Sales

Current (Retained) Permanent
FTE
Average Annual
Number of
Salary or
Current
FTE
Hourly Wage1
$69360
$88,842
$135,726

Services

Projected New Permanent FTE

4
4

FTE in
Year 2

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

3

7

1

FTE in
Year 3

Total New
FTE by Year
3

FTE in
Year 1

1

8

1

1

1

0

0

3

3

Manufacturing
High-Skilled

$83,688

2

1

Medium-Skilled

$48,000

8

2

None

0

0

Basic-Skilled

1

1
2

0

0

5
0

Other (specify)
Marketing
Engineering
Total

94,608
$134,580

3
2
38

0
0

0
0

7

0
0

5

0
0

6

18

1

Wages are defined as all remuneration paid to an employee. Remuneration means every form of compensation for employment paid by an
employer to an employee; whether paid directly or indirectly by the employer, including salaries, commissions, bonuses, and the reasonable money
value of board, rent, housing, lodging, or similar advantage received. Where gratuities are received from a person other than the employer, the value
of such gratuities shall be included as part of the remuneration paid by the employer. Source: https://labor.ny.gov.
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C) Estimated Wages and IncentivesWhat is the estimated percentage of FTEs (retained and new) will
receive the following hourly wage2 and benefits or more?
Less than $12.34

0 %

$12.35 - 18.52

0 %

$18.53 – 24.69

21 %

$24.70 or above

78 %
Total

100%

Estimate the percentage of the current workforce whose wages meet or exceed the
livable wage for Ulster County as defined by the Living Wage Calculator, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, Updated 2016 NY (http://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/36111
for 1 adult):
Will the Applicant pay a livable wage for Ulster County, as defined by the Living Wage X Yes
Calculator for 1 adult, to all employees for the duration of the Agency’s incentives?
Estimate the percentage of residents of the Mid-Hudson Region (Dutchess, Orange,
Putnam, Rockland, Sullivan, Ulster, and Westchester counties) who are expected to fill
the projected new jobs at the end of year three (3) years after Project completion:

100

%

☐ No

90

%

Describe the benefits you offer or plan to offer to your employees:

● 15 PTO days accrued annually, which increase each year with tenure, up to 15 days accrued
annually
● 5 Sick days accrued annually
● Your Birthday Off!
● RBW Holidays:10 Paid holidays
● Up to 12 weeks Prorated paid parental leave.
● 401(k)
● 3% company contribution, no employee contribution required to receive the 3% (vesting
begins after a one year wait period).
● Profit-Sharing with 5-year vesting (20% a year, qualifies after the first year of employment)
● Provided there is a strong and profitable year, the company gifts a portion of the profits to
the employees in the form of a retirement contribution
● Pre Tax Commuter Benefit program
● Employee Assistance Program (EAP)
● Adoption Assistance

2

The wages are based on most recently available data from Q2 2017, annualized by multiplying quarterly wages by four (4) and adjusting for 35
hours of work per week. Source: Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW) for Ulster County for All Industries.
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Describe the internal training and advancement opportunities you offer or plan to offer to your employees:

At RBW we value our team and know that as a whole we only improve if we as individuals
improve. Therefore, all full-time team members are eligible for an annual professional
development allowance. Called Self Improvement Employment Subsidy (SIES)
These funds can be used for classes, seminars, workshops, conferences, etc. that will help the
individual in their role. Each team member will be required to submit a SIES Proposal to the
Director of People. The SIES Proposal will be reviewed by the Director of People, Managing
Partner, and the team member’s direct supervisor/department leader. All submissions will be
reviewed and are subject to approval.
Team members will be required to reimburse all expenses paid under the SIES program should
they leave RBW within 6 months of receiving reimbursement, or fail to follow-through with the
obligations spelled out in the business plan, for any reason. The SIES program will be assessed and
amended on an annual basis. The program is subject to change and may be discontinued at the
discretion of senior management, any time, with or without advanced notice.
A response from each submission will be approved or denied within two weeks from the date of
submission. All rejected submissions will be accompanied with a justification, and may be eligible
for re-submission.
2020 Details:
The 2020 SIES program will reimburse up to 90% of the total expense for each team member, with
a maximum reimbursement of $1250.00 per year, per full time employee. The maximum
reimbursable expenses, company wide, for 2019 will be $24,000.00. First come, first served based
on approval date.
All approved expenses must be paid by the team member, and will be reimbursed within 30 days.
These funds can be applied towards registration fees, etc. Other expenses such as (transportation,
attire, lodging, etc.) are not covered or reimbursable.
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VIII.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RESOURCES

Estimate the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs that are contracted to independent contractors (e.g.,
contractors or subcontractors) that would be retained and created as part of this Project.
Attach a list that describes in detail the types of contract resources for this Project, including the types of
activities or work performed and the projected timeframe for creating new contractor positions.
III. CONSTRUCTION LABOR
Current
Projected
Headcount
New
New
New
Total
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
by Year 3
Full-time
N/A
Part-time
Seasonal

IX.

CONSTRUCTION LABOR

Number of construction workers expected to be hired for this Project:

30+/- Current Estimate

Does the Applicant utilize contractors who:
Have a certified apprenticeship program?

☐ Yes

TBD %

☐ No

Pay a prevailing wage?

☐ Yes

TBD %

☐ No

Pay a living wage as defined by the Living Wage Calculator
for 1 adult?
☐ Yes

TBD %

☐ No

Use construction labor from Ulster, Greene, Delaware,
Sullivan, Orange, Dutchess or Columbia counties?

TBD %

☐ No

☐ Yes

Describe the general contractor’s plans and selection process for using regional construction labor
or regional sub-contractors:
The company has already retained local bank fencing, and a local architecture firm to support the
successful implementation of the building renovation. In this spirit the company has begun to speak to the
local contractors who our architecture firm Scott Dutton has the ability to refer to the project for bidding.
At this moment We are currently not able to provide details on who the Contractors will be for this project .
Conversations have occurred with Roeber Rauch Custom Builders LLC about their past commercial work.
We are still in the design phase of the renovations and have not yet selected contractors or gone out to bid
because the drawings set is still in schematic design phase and does not have enough detail for a contractor
to provide pricing. We have every intention to to solicit bids from local and regional contractors and award
to as many local businesses as possible.
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X.

PROJECT COSTS AND FINANCING

Attach additional
A) Project Costs
Estimated Amount
Land Acquisition:

14

acres

$

Building Acquisition:

99k

square feet

$

0

1,362,500

New Building Construction:

square feet

$ 0

Building Addition(s):

square feet

$

Infrastructure Work:

0

$ 611,880

Reconstruction/Renovation:

square feet

$1,615,000

Manufacturing Equipment:

$650,000

Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.):

$250,000

Soft Costs (professional services, labor, etc.):

$132,000

Other (specify):

Contingencies

$1,183,047
TOTAL:

$5,804,427

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this application?
X Yes
☐ No
If yes, describe: Planning board fees, Architectural fees, Survey and environmental Phase 1 fees,
attorneys fees, building inspection fees totally approximately $58,000
B) Sources of Funds for Project Costs
Equity:

$700,000

Bank Financing:

$5,223,984

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance:

$ 0

Taxable Bond Issuance

$ 0

Public Sources (Include total of all State and Federal grants and tax credits):

$647,500

Identify each State and Federal program:
Central Hudson

$100,000

Empire State Grant

$547,500

Additional sheets may be attached, as necessary.
Amount of total financing requested from lending institutions:
Amount of total financing related to existing debt refinancing:
Has a commitment for financing been received?

TOTAL:

$5,804,427
$4,456,927

$
_$________ 0
☐ Yes

X No

If yes:
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Lending Institution:
Contact:
XI.

Ulster Savings Bank

John Klassen

Phone:

845-338-6322 x3279

UCIDA UNIFORM TAX POLICY MATRIX – PILOT POINTS CALCULATION

UCIDA’s Uniform Tax Policy Matrix is applicable to Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (‘UTEP’) Categories 1-4.
Projected New FTE Jobs3 to be Created – ONLY CHOOSE ONE. IF ANY
● 5-9 – (1 point)
● 10-49 – (2 points)
● 50+ - (3 points plus 1 point for every additional 15 jobs)

18 # of FTE
__2___

Current (Retained) FTE Jobs – ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY
● 5-29 – (1 point)
● 30-99 – (2 points)
● 100+ - (3 points)

35

# of FTE
___0__

Projected Wages4 - ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY
Enter Point Value
●
●
●

All jobs over LW – (1 point)
25% of FTE earn over 150% LW plus benefits – (2 points)
25% of FTE earn over between 150% LW and 200% LW plus 25%
FTE earn over 200% LW plus benefits – (3 points)

__3___

Construction Workforce – ONLY CHOOSE ONE, IF ANY
Enter Point Value
●
●
●

75% regional workforce5 (Ulster County & neighbors) – (1 point)
50% paid prevailing wages – (2 points)
75% paid prevailing wage – (3 points)

_0____

Environmentally Sustainable – (If any of the following apply, 2 points)
● Use of existing industrial site or brownfield
● Construction at a shovel-ready site or in a designated business
park
● Use of energy-efficient technology
● Use of significant renewable energy

Enter Point Value

__2___

Community Investment – CHOOSE AS MANY AS APPLICABLE
Enter Point Value

3

One FTE is equivalent to 35 hours of work per week or 1,820 hours per year.

4

The wages for each PILOT point level are based on most recently available data annualized by multiplying quarterly wages by four (4) and
adjusting for 35 hours of work per week. Source: Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW) for Ulster County for All Industries.
5

Regional labor refers to workers residing in Ulster, Greene, Delaware, Sullivan, Orange, Dutchess, and Columbia counties.
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●
●

Project within ¼ mile of public transit – (1 point)
In economically distressed area of County6 - (2 points)

__1___
__2___

Educational/ Workforce Investment – CHOOSE AS MANY AS APPLICABLE
Enter Point Value
●
●

At least 50% of workforce has advanced educational credential –
(2 points)
Workforce housing or senior/disabled housing – (3 points)
Total Points

XII.

__2___
__0___
12

ESTIMATED VALUE OF INCENTIVES

A) Property Tax Exemption:
Agency staff will complete this section with the Applicant based on information submitted by the Applicant and
the local taxing jurisdiction’s Assessor.
Current assessed full value of the property before Project improvements:
$1,190,000
Estimated assessed value of Project improvements (i.e., increase in value of the
property’s assessment with the Project improvements)
Estimated new assessed full value of property after Project improvements
Estimated real property tax rate per dollar of full assessment
Assumed annual increase in assessment and tax rate

$1,000,000
$2,190,000
$0.0785

1.3 %

Abatement schedule based on PILOT Points Calculation results
Estimated PILOT property tax abatements over 10 years

$400,832.30

A
B
C=A+B
D
E = B x (1-D)
PILOT Existing Real Estimated Real Estimated % of PILOT Estimated PILOT
Year Property Taxes Property Taxes Total Without Exemption, Payments With
Without
PILOT
according
PILOT
PILOT7
to
Abatement
Schedule
1

$93,363.83

$171,820.83

$265,184.66

95%

$8,591.04

F=A+E
Estimated
Total With
PILOT

$101,954.87

6

Economic distress applies if one or more of the following criteria is met: 1) The unemployment rate is, for the most recent 24-month period for
which data are available, at least one percentage point higher than the national average unemployment rate; 2) Per capita income is, for the most
recent period for which data are available, 80 percent or less of the national average per capita income; or 3) The area is subject to a "special
condition" resulting from severe short- or long-term changes in economic conditions, such as the shutdown of a major employer or the loss of a
significant industry. See US Economic Development Adminitration,13 CFR 301.3 (www.eda.gov)
7

The figures in this column assume that the Project is completed as described in the Application and without the involvement of the Agency and,
therefore, subject to real property taxes. However, as provided in this Application, the Applicant has certified that it would not undertake the Project
without the financial assistance granted by the Agency. Accordingly, this column is prepared solely for the purpose of determining the estimated
amount of the real property tax abatement being granted by the Agency.
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2
$94,577.56

$174,054.50

$268,632.06

$17,405.45

$111,983.01

3

$95,807.07

$176,317.21

$272,124.28

85%

$26,447.58

$122,254.65

4

$97,052.56

$178,609.33

$275,661.89

80%

$35,721.87

$132,774.43

5

$98,314.24

$180,931.25

$279,245.50

75%

$45,232.81

$143,547.06

6

$99,592.33

$183,283.36

$282,875.696

70%

$54,985.01

$154,577.34

7

$100,887.03

$185,666.04

$286,553.07

65%

$64,983.12

$165,870.14

8

$102,198.56

$188,079.70

$290,278.26

60%

$75,231.88

$177,430.445

9

$103,527.14

$190,524.74

$294,051.88

55%

$85,736.13

$189,263.27

10

$104,872.99

$193,001.56

$297,874.55

50%

$96,500.78

$201,373.77

11

$106,236.34

$195,510.58

$301,746.92

40%

$117,306.35

$223,542.69

12

$107,617.42

$198,052.22

$305,669.63

30%

$138,636.55

$246,253.97

13

$109,016.44

$200,626.90

$309,643.34

20%

$160,501.52

$269,517.96

14

$110,433.66

$203,235.05

$313,668.70

10%

$182,911.54

$293,345.20

15

$111,869.29

$205,877.10

$317,746.40

10%

$185,289.39

$297,158.69

Total

$1,535,366.46

$2,825,590.38 $4,360,956.84

90%

--

$400,832.30 $2,830,847.49

If the Applicant is requesting incentives that are greater than the Agency’s standard tax exemptions, describe
the incentives and provide a justification for this Deviated PILOT request8:
None

B) Sales and Use Tax Benefit:
Note: The figures below will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance and
represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may authorize with respect to
the application.
Costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local sales and use tax9:

$2,814,192

Estimated State and local sales and use tax benefit (sales tax amount multiplied by 8.0%
plus additional use tax amounts):
$225,135

8

Historically, the Agency has required consent from all local taxing jurisdictions before approving a Deviated PILOT.

9

Sales and use tax (sales tax) is applied to: tangible personal property (unless specifically exempt); gas, electricity, refrigeration and steam, and
telephone service; selected services; food and beverages sold by restaurants, taverns, and caterers; hotel occupancy; and certain admission charges
and dues. For a definition of products, services, and transactions subject to sales tax see the following links:
https://www.tax.ny.gov/bus/st/subject.htm and
https://www.tax.ny.gov/pubs_and_bulls/tg_bulletins/st/quick_reference_guide_for_taxable_and_exempt_property_and_services.htm.
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C) Mortgage Recording Tax Benefit:
Mortgage amount (include construction, permanent, bridge financing or refinancing):

$

Estimated mortgage recording tax exemption benefit (mortgage amount multiplied by
.75 %):

$ 39,180

D) For bond applicants only: (Projected

First Year Debt Service:
Total Debt Service:

N/A

5,223,984

year borrowing term)

Without Bonds
$ N/A
$ N/A

With Bonds
$ N/A
$ N/A

E) Percentage of Project Costs Financed from Public Sector:
Percentage of Project costs financed from public sector: 15
(Total B + C + D + E below / A Total Project Cost)
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

%

Total Project Cost:
Estimated Value of PILOT:
Estimated Value of Sales Tax Incentive:
Estimated Value of Mortgage Tax Incentive:
Total Other Public Incentives (tax credits, grants, ESD incentives, etc.):

$
5,804,427
$ 400,832.30
$225,135
$39,180
$647,500
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XIII.

OTHER

Is there anything else the Agency’s board should know regarding this Project?
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REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION
Charles Brill (name of CEO or another authorized representative of Applicant)

con irms and says that he/she is the Managing Partner (title) of RBW Studio LLC (name of corporation or
other entity) named in the attached Application (the “Applicant”), that he/she has read the foregoing
Application and knows the contents thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with
the Agency and as follows:
A. Job Listings. In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law (“GML”), the
applicant understands and agrees that, if the proposed Project receives any Financial Assistance from the
Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment
opportunities created as a result of the proposed Project must be listed with the New York State
Department of Labor Community Services Division (the "DOL") and the Ulster County Of ice of
Employment and Training (collectively with the DOL, the "OET Entities"), the administrative entity of the
service delivery area created by the Federal Job Training Partnership Act (Public Law 97-300) ("OET
LAW"), as supplanted by the Workplace Investment Act of 1998 (P.L. No. 105-220), in which the proposed
Project is located.
B. First Consideration for Employment. In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the GML, the applicant
understands and agrees that, if the proposed Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency,
except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where practicable, the applicant must
irst consider persons eligible to participate in OET LAW programs who shall be referred by the OET
Entities for new employment opportunities created as a result of the proposed Project.

C. Employment Reports. The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the proposed Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to ile, or cause to be iled, with the Agency, at
least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the number of people employed
at the project site, and salary levels, including (1) the NYS-45–Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage
Reporting and Unemployment Insurance Return – for the quarter ending December 31 (the “NYS-45”), and
(2) the US Dept. of Labor BLS 3020 Multiple Worksite report if applicable. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT Agreement
between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under the Project Agreement
between the Agency and Applicant.

D. Sales Tax. In accordance with Section 874(8) of the GML, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the
proposed Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in
accordance with Section 874(8) of the GML, the applicant agrees to ile, or cause to be iled, with the New
York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation
and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the applicant and all consultants
or subcontractors retained by the applicant. Copies of all ilings shall be provided to the Agency.
Applicant hereby understands and agrees, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the GML and the policies
of the Agency that any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the Applicant and
approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, may be subject to recapture and/or termination by
the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be established by the Agency and set forth in
transaction documents to be entered into by and between the Agency and the Applicant.

E. Agency Enforcement Policy. The applicant acknowledges that it has read and understands the Agency’s
Enforcement of Agency Projects Policy and recognizes that in connection the assistance by the Agency in
the undertaking by the applicant of the Project, the Agency will require the applicant to execute and deliver
a Uniform Agency Project Agreement outlined in Section F below.

F. Uniform Agency Project Agreement. The applicant agrees to enter into a uniform agency project agreement
with the Agency where the applicant agrees that (1) the amount of Financial Assistance to be received
UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives | Adopted _________
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shall be contingent upon, and shall bear a direct relationship to the success or lack of success of such
project in delivering certain described public bene its (the “Public Bene its”) and (2) the Agency will be
entitled to recapture some or all of the Financial Assistance granted to the applicant if the project is
unsuccessful in whole or in part in delivering the promised Public Bene its.

G. Assignment of Agency Abatements. In connection with any Agency Straight Lease Transaction or Agency
Bond Transaction, the Agency may grant to the applicant certain exemptions from mortgage recording
taxes, sales and use taxes and real property taxes. The applicant understands that the grant of such
exemptions by the Agency is intended to bene it the applicant. Subsequently, if the applicant determines to
convey the Project and, in connection with such conveyance to assign such exemptions to the purchaser,
the applicant understands that any such assignment is subject to review and consent by the Agency,
together with the satisfaction of any conditions that may be imposed by the Agency.

H. Post-Closing Cost Veri ication. The applicant agrees (1) the scope of the Project will not vary
signi icantly from the description in the public hearing resolution for the project and (2) to deliver to the
Agency within sixty (60) days following the completion date of a project an af idavit providing the total
costs of the project. In the event that the amount of the total project costs described in the af idavit at the
completion date exceeds the amount described in an af idavit provided by the applicant on the closing
date of the project, the applicant agrees to adjust the amounts payable by the applicant to the Agency by
such larger amount and to pay to the Agency such additional amounts. In the event that the amount
described is less, there shall not be any adjustment to the Agency fees.

I.

J.

Hold Harmless Provision. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be and is
responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required to be taken by the
Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of general counsel and/or the
Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application, the proposed Project it describes, the
attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried
to successful conclusion and hereby releases the Agency, including the members, of icers, servants,
agents and employees thereof, from and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to
indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or
expense incurred by: (i) the Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the
attached Application, regardless of whether or not the Application or the Project described therein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (ii) the
Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the Project described therein and (iii) any further
action taken by the Agency with respect to the Project; including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, all causes of action and attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits
or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.

Fees. By executing and submitting this Application, the applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees:
(i) A non-refundable Application Fee of $1,000 per application;

(ii) Expenses associated with Applicant background check;
(iii)

Expenses associated with Public Hearing(s), including stenographers’ fees;

(iv)A Closing Fee in accordance with the Fee Policy effective as of the date of this application, to be paid
at transaction closing (unless otherwise outlined in the Project Agreement or authorizing resolution).
This fee will be equal to 1% of the total value of expenses that are positively impacted by the Agency
incentives.
(v) All fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but not limited
to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel or bond/transaction counsel, and (2) other
consultants retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed Project; with all such charges to
be paid by the Applicant at the closing or, if the closing does not occur, within ten (10) business days
of receipt of the Agency’s invoices therefor (please note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a
written estimate of fees and costs of the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel);
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(vi) The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, including bond/transaction counsel and
the Agency’s general counsel’s fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of the
Project and included in the inancing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by the
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond inancing.

If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable or
speci ied period of time, to take reasonable, proper or requested action, or withdraws, abandons, cancels
or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to ind buyers willing to purchase the bond issue
requested, or if the Applicant is unable to facilitate the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction,
then, upon presentation of an invoice, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all costs
incurred by the Agency in the processing of the Application, including attorneys' fees, if any.

K. FOIL. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of Information
Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records related to this application are
potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to limited statutory exclusions.

L. Financial Review. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency shall undertake an assessment of all
material information included in connection with the Application for Financial Assistance as necessary to
afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide Financial Assistance for the Project,
including, but not limited to quali ication of the proposed project under the GML (including any retail
analysis, as applicable), conducting a full application review, review of applicant inancial history and
project pro-formas, and consideration of all local development priorities.

M. Background Check. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency shall undertake a background check on
the Applicant, including but not limited to the Applicant’s related business entities and stockholders,
members or partners with a % ownership greater than 5%. The Applicant shall furnish the Agency with a
Certi icate of Standing from the Department of State or personal tax reports and police records as outlined
in the Agency’s Background Check Policy.
N. Compliance with Article 18-A of the GML. The Applicant con irms and hereby acknowledges that as of the
date of this Application, the Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of
the GML, including, but not limited to, the provisions of Section 859-a and subdivision one of Section
862of the GML, and the provisions of subdivision one of Section 862 of the GML will not be
violated if Financial Assistance is provided for the Project.

O. Compliance with Federal, State, and Local Laws. The Applicant con irms and acknowledges that the owner,
occupant, or operator receiving Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance
with applicable local, State and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and
regulations.

P.

False or Misleading Information. The Applicant con irms and acknowledges that the submission of any
knowingly false of knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any
Financial Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement in the Project.

Q. Absence of Con licts of Interest. The applicant acknowledges that the members, of icers and employees of
the Agency are listed on the Agency’s website. No member, of icer or employee of the Agency has an
interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as
hereinafter described:
R. Additional Information. Additional information regarding the requirements noted in this Application and
other requirements of the Agency are included in the Agency’s Policies which can be accessed at
http://ulstercountyny.gov/economic-development/ulster-county-industrial-development-agency/policies
.
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S. Representation of Information. Neither this Application nor any other agreement, document, certi icate,
project inancials, or written statement furnished to the Agency or by or on behalf of the applicant in
connection with the project contemplated by this Application contains any untrue statement of a material
fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein
not misleading. There is no fact within the special knowledge of any of the of icers of the applicant which
has not been disclosed herein or in writing by them to the Agency and which materially adversely affects
or in the future in their opinion may, insofar as they can now reasonably foresee, materially adversely
affect the business, properties, assets or condition, inancial or otherwise, of the applicant.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF ULSTER

) SS.:
)

Charles Brill
_________________________________________,
being irst duly sworn, deposes and says:

1.

2.

RBW Studio LLC
Managing Partner (Corporate Of ice) of _________________________
That I am the _________________________
(Applicant)
and that I am duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.

That I have read the attached Application, I know the contents thereof, and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true,
accurate, and complete.

State of Florida
County of Orange

Subscribed and af irmed to me under penalties of perjury

__________________________________
_
(Signature of Of icer)

Proof of Identity: NY driver_license

This ___
20__21
9 day of _________________,
february

____________________________________________
(Notary Public) Online Notary

Notarized online using audio-video communication
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NEW YORK STATE FINANCIAL REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCIES

Be advised that the New York General Municipal Law imposes certain reporting requirements on IDAs and
recipients of IDA inancial assistance. Of importance to IDA Applicants is Section 859
(https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/laws/GMU/859). This section requires IDAs to transmit inancial
statements within 90 days following the end of an Agency’s iscal year ending December 31, prepared by an
independent, certi ied public accountant, to the New York State Comptroller, and the Commissioner of the
New York State Department of Economic Development. These audited inancial statements shall include
supplemental schedules listing the following information:
1.
2.
3.

All straight-lease (“sale-leaseback”) transactions and whether or not they are obligations of the
Agency.

All bonds and notes issued, outstanding or retired during the period and whether or not they are
obligations of the Agency.
All new bond issues shall be listed and for each new bond issue, the following information is
required:
a.

b.

Whether the Project occupant is a not-for-pro it corporation.

d.

The estimated amount of tax exemptions authorized for each Project.

c.

Name and address of each owner of the Project.

e.

The purpose for which the bond was issued.

g.

Bond maturity date.

i.

Estimate of the number of jobs created and retained for the Project.

a.

Name of the Project.

f.

h.
4.

Name of the Project inanced with the bond proceeds.

The bond interest rate at issuance and, if variable, the range of interest rates applicable.

Federal tax status of the bond issue.

All new straight lease transactions shall be listed and for each new straight lease transaction, the
following information is required:
b.

Whether the Project occupant is a not-for-pro it corporation.

d.

The estimated amount of tax exemptions authorized for each Project.

c.

Name and address of each owner of the Project.
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e.
f.

g.

The purpose for which each transaction was made.

Method of inancial assistance utilized for each Project, other than the tax exemptions claimed
by the Project.

Estimate of the number of jobs created and retained for the Project.

Sign below to indicate that you have read and understood the above.
Signature:
Name:
Title:

Company:
Date:

Charles Brill

Managing Partner
RBW Studio LLC

02/09/2021
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PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION
RBW STUDIO LLC PROJECT
A regular meeting of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was convened
on March 17, 2021 at 9:00 o’clock a.m., local time, in public session via video conference as authorized
pursuant to Executive Order No. 202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M.
Cuomo, suspending provisions of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access
to public meetings and authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or
similar service.
The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chair of the Agency and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:
PRESENT:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

Chair
Vice Chair/Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Chief Financial Officer/Member

Each of the members present participated in the meeting telephonically pursuant to Executive Order No.
202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M. Cuomo, suspending provisions
of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access to public meetings and
authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or similar service.
ABSENT:

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING:
Rose Woodworth
A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq.
The following resolution
_____________________, to wit:

Chief Executive Officer
Agency and Special Counsel
was

offered

by

__________________,

seconded

by

Resolution No. 0321-__
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF ULSTER
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE
BENEFIT OF RBW STUDIO LLC.
WHEREAS, Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized and
empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of Article
18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the
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“Enabling Act”) and Chapter 787 of the 1976 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 923 of
said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial
and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living,
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the
Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act), or to cause
said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease
said projects with the obligation to purchase; and
WHEREAS, RBW Studio LLC, a State of Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”),
submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application is on file at the
office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) for the
benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in an
approximately 14.50 acre parcel of land located at 521 Boices Lane (tax map no. 48.7-2-37.210) in the
Town of Ulster, Ulster County, New York (the “Land”), together with an approximately 100,000 square
foot building located thereon (the “Facility”), (2) the reconstruction and renovation of the Facility; and (3)
the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain machinery, equipment and other personal
property (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the Equipment being collectively
referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned and operated by the Company as a
production and manufacturing facility, and any other directly and indirectly related activities; (B) the
granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect
to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real
estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the
lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person
as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial
assistance” (as defined in the Act) of more than $100,000 to any project, the Agency, among other things,
must hold a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to said project; and
WHEREAS, the Agency desires to provide for compliance with the provisions of Section 859-a of
the Act with respect to the Project;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF ULSTER COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
The Agency hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency, after
consultation with the members of the Agency and Agency Counsel, (A) that due to the (1) ban on large
meetings or gatherings pursuant to Executive Order 202.1 issued on March 12, 2020, as supplemented, (2)
ban on non-essential gatherings of individuals of any size for any reason pursuant to Executive Order 202.10
issued on March 23, 2020, as supplemented and (3) suspension of the Open Meetings Law relating to public
hearings pursuant to Executive Order 202.15 issued on April 9, 2020, as supplemented, each as issued by
Governor Cuomo, during the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, to establish the time, date and
electronic method of either conference call or webinar of conducting a public hearing of the Agency to hear
all persons interested in the Project (the “Public Hearing”); provided, however, when the ban is lifted or the
Executive Orders are rescinded, the Chief Executive Officer shall establish the time, date and place for the
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Public Hearing, which Public Hearing will be held in a city, town or village where the Project Facility is or
is to be located, (B) to cause notice of such Public Hearing to be given to the public by publishing a notice
or notices of such Public Hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of the
governmental units where the Project Facility is or is to be located, such notice or notices to comply with
the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (C) to cause notice of the Public Hearing to be given to the
chief executive officer of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project
Facility is or is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (D) to conduct
such Public Hearing; (E) to cause a report of the Public Hearing fairly summarizing the views presented at
such Public Hearing (the “Report”) to be prepared; and (F) to cause a copy of the Report to be made
available to the members of the Agency.
Section 2.
The Chair, Vice Chair and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby
authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things
or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution.
Section 3.
All action taken by the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency in connection with
the Public Hearing with respect to the Project prior to the date of this Resolution is hereby ratified and
confirmed.
Section 4.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which
resulted as follows:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING

________
________
________
________
________
________
________

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.
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STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ULSTER

)
) SS.:
)

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of
the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, held on March 17,
2021 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said
original and of such Resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates
to the subject matters therein referred to.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting;
(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the
“Open Meetings Law”) except as modified by Executive Order 202.1, as supplemented, said meeting was
open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in
accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present, either in-person or appearing telephonically in accordance with Executive Order 202.1, as
supplemented, throughout said meeting.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force and effect
and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this
_____ day of March, 2021.
_____________________________________
(Assistant) Secretary

(SEAL)
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Ulster County Industrial Development Agency/
Ulster County Capital Resource Corporation
Application for Incentives
Date:

Answer all questions. Use "None" or "Not Applicable" where necessary.
I.

2/24/2021

APPLICANT INFORMATION

A) Applicant:
Name:

Romeo Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Romeo KIA of Kingston

Address:

111 Schwenk Drive

City:

Kingston

State: ---NY

Federal ID/EIN:

26-0335801

Primary Contact:

Lucia Romeo

Title:
Phone:

Corporate Counsel

12401

Zip:

Website: www.RomeoKia.com

Lucia@RomeoAutoGroup.c
.1 ---""-----------Ema1:

(XXXXXXXX
51 8)796-8426

B) Real Estate Holding Company (if different from Applicant):

Will a separate company will hold title to/own the property related to this Project? If yes:
Name:

64 Properties, LLC

Address:

170 Saratoga Ave

City:

South Glens Falls

State: --=-----NY

Federal ID/EIN:

20-1723810

Primary Contact:

Lucia Romeo

Title:
Phone:

Corporate Counsel

XXXXXXXX
(518)796-8426

Website:

Zip:

12803

----------

.
Lucia@RomeoAutoGroup.ct>l'f\
Ema1:
1 ---""-----------

Describe the terms and conditions of the lease between the Applicant and the Real Estate Holding
Company. If there is an option to purchase the property, provide the date option was signed and the date
the option expires:
On July 23, 2019, the parties signed a 10 year lease for the property, with unlimited 5 year renewal
options.

UCIDA/UCCRC Application for Incentives I Updated 01-06-2021
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PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION
ROMEO ENTERPRISES, LLC PROJECT
A regular meeting of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was convened
on March 17, 2021 at 9:00 o’clock a.m., local time, in public session via video conference as authorized
pursuant to Executive Order No. 202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M.
Cuomo, suspending provisions of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access
to public meetings and authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or
similar service.
The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chair of the Agency and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:
PRESENT:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

Chair
Vice Chair/Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Chief Financial Officer/Member

Each of the members present participated in the meeting telephonically pursuant to Executive Order No.
202.1, as supplemented, issued by New York State Governor Andrew M. Cuomo, suspending provisions
of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law that require public in-person access to public meetings and
authorizing board members to participate in said meetings by conference call or similar service.
ABSENT:

AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING:
Rose Woodworth
A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq.
The following resolution
_____________________, to wit:

Chief Executive Officer
Agency and Special Counsel
was

offered

by

__________________,

seconded

by

Resolution No. 0321-__
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF ULSTER
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE
BENEFIT OF ROMEO ENTERPRISES, LLC.
WHEREAS, Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized and
empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of Article
18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the
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“Enabling Act”) and Chapter 787 of the 1976 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 923 of
said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, commercial
and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living,
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the
Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act), or to cause
said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease
said projects with the obligation to purchase; and
WHEREAS, Romeo Enterprises, LLC, a State of New York limited liability company (the
“Company”), has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application
is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the
“Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition
of an interest in 2 parcels of land totaling approximately 4.66 acres located at 1670 - 1694 Ulster Avenue
(tax map nos. 39.82-2-3.120 and 39.82-2-3.110) in the Town of Ulster, Ulster County, New York
(collectively, the “Land”), (2) the construction of an approximately 18,991 square foot building on the Land
(the “Facility”); and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain machinery, equipment
and other personal property (collectively, the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility, and the Equipment
being collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned and operated by
the Company as an automotive dealership, and any other directly and indirectly related activities; (B) the
granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect
to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real
estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the
lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person
as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, prior to the Agency providing any “financial
assistance” (as defined in the Act) of more than $100,000 to any project, the Agency, among other things,
must hold a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act with respect to said project; and
WHEREAS, the Agency desires to provide for compliance with the provisions of Section 859-a of
the Act with respect to the Project;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF ULSTER COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
The Agency hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency, after
consultation with the members of the Agency and Agency Counsel, (A) that due to the (1) ban on large
meetings or gatherings pursuant to Executive Order 202.1 issued on March 12, 2020, as supplemented, (2)
ban on non-essential gatherings of individuals of any size for any reason pursuant to Executive Order 202.10
issued on March 23, 2020, as supplemented and (3) suspension of the Open Meetings Law relating to public
hearings pursuant to Executive Order 202.15 issued on April 9, 2020, as supplemented, each as issued by
Governor Cuomo, during the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, to establish the time, date and
electronic method of either conference call or webinar of conducting a public hearing of the Agency to hear
all persons interested in the Project (the “Public Hearing”); provided, however, when the ban is lifted or the
Executive Orders are rescinded, the Chief Executive Officer shall establish the time, date and place for the
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Public Hearing, which Public Hearing will be held in a city, town or village where the Project Facility is or
is to be located, (B) to cause notice of such Public Hearing to be given to the public by publishing a notice
or notices of such Public Hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of the
governmental units where the Project Facility is or is to be located, such notice or notices to comply with
the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (C) to cause notice of the Public Hearing to be given to the
chief executive officer of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project
Facility is or is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act; (D) to conduct
such Public Hearing; (E) to cause a report of the Public Hearing fairly summarizing the views presented at
such Public Hearing (the “Report”) to be prepared; and (F) to cause a copy of the Report to be made
available to the members of the Agency.
Section 2.
The Chair, Vice Chair and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby
authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things
or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution.
Section 3.
All action taken by the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency in connection with
the Public Hearing with respect to the Project prior to the date of this Resolution is hereby ratified and
confirmed.
Section 4.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which
resulted as follows:
James Malcolm
Diane Eynon, Ph.D.
Faye Storms
Michael J. Ham
Orlando Reece
Daniel Savona
Richard O. Jones

VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING

________
________
________
________
________
________
________

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.
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STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF ULSTER

)
) SS.:
)

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Ulster County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of
the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the Resolution contained therein, held on March 17,
2021 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said
original and of such Resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates
to the subject matters therein referred to.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting;
(B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the
“Open Meetings Law”) except as modified by Executive Order 202.1, as supplemented, said meeting was
open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in
accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present, either in-person or appearing telephonically in accordance with Executive Order 202.1, as
supplemented, throughout said meeting.
I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full force and effect
and has not been amended, repealed, or rescinded.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this
_____ day of March, 2021.
_____________________________________
(Assistant) Secretary

(SEAL)
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Completed PPE Grant Applications for Board Consideration on March 17, 2021
Business Name
Leonie Lacouette
Funds Available before 3/17/21 Approvals

City
Wallkill

NAICS Definition
All Other Miscellaneous Manufacturing

Compliant Years
Project
in UC Max Allowed Ownership
No
35 $
232.66 Leonie Lacouette 100%
$
232.66

Entity
Type
FTE calc Date/Time Finalized
Sole Prop
0.6
3/8/21 11:19 AM

$685.47
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